
                                  

AGENDA
    

For a meeting of the
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

to be held on
THURSDAY, 22 MARCH 2018

at
2.00 PM

in
WITHAM ROOM - COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 

GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ
Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Ian Stokes

Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Damian Evans
Councillor David Mapp (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Peter Stephens
Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Paul Wood

Invited Cabinet Members
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance

Support Officer: 
Anita Eckersley

Tel:      01476 406517
E-mail: a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  MEMBERSHIP 

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members

2  APOLOGIES 

3  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14 DECEMBER 2017 (Pages 3 - 13)

(Enclosed)

5  UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 

6  HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 14 - 19)



Report Number RIM404 of the Cabinet Member for Finance
(Enclosed)

7  ANNUAL REPORT ON GRANTS AND RETURNS 2016/17 (Pages 20 - 25)

Report of External Audit
(Enclosed)

8  INDICATIVE INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY (Pages 26 - 45)

Report of Internal Audit 
(Enclosed)

9  EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2017/18 (Pages 46 - 69)

Report of External Audit
(Enclosed)

10  INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS (Pages 70 - 93)

(10a) Internal Audit Progress Report
(Enclosed)

(10b) Internal Audit Follow Up Report
(Enclosed)

11  STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2017/18 (Pages 94 - 112)

Report number CFM 455 of the Cabinet Member for Finance
(Enclosed)

12  PREVENTION OF RIGHT TO BUY FRAUD - PROCEDURAL INFORMATION 
(Pages 113 - 118)

Report number CFM456 of the Cabinet Member for Finance
(Enclosed) 

13  ANY OTHER BUSINESS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASONS OF SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT. 



MINUTES
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 14 DECEMBER 2017

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman)
Councillor David Mapp (Vice Chairman)
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Paul Wood

OTHER MEMBERS
Councillor Adam Stokes – Cabinet Member for finance
Councillor Jacky Smith – Cabinet Member for Health, Well-being and Skills

AUDIT
External Audit – KPMG, John Cornett, Director
External Audit – KPMG, Mike Norman, Manager
Head Of Internal Audit – RSM Chris Williams
Senior Manager – RSM – Amjad Ali

OFFICERS
Interim Section 151 Officer (Debbie Mogg)
Assistant Director – Finance (Richard Wyles)
Governance and Risk Officer (Tracey Elliott)
Service Manager – Housing Development and Improvements (Andrew Sweeney)
Service Manager – IT Services (Chris Lynch)
Counter Fraud Officer (Dee Harrison)
Civic and democratic Officer (Anita Eckersley)

24. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Damien Evans and 
Councillor Peter Stephens.

25. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

No interests were disclosed.

26. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 SEPTEMBER 2017

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2017 were proposed, 
seconded and agreed as a correct record.

Pg 3

Agenda Item 4



27. UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

The Chairman noted that an update on the HRA Capital Programme would be 
taken under Any Other Business.

28. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER

John Cornett from KPMG presented the Annual Audit Letter 2016/17 which 
summarised the outcome of completed audit work. KPMG issued an unqualified 
opinion on the authority’s financial statements on 25 September 2017 and an 
unqualified conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure value for 
money. The report included key messages relating to the value for money 
conclusion. Mr Cornett reported that the certification of grants and returns was 
now complete and no material errors had been identified during the audit.  
KPMG considered the Authority’s accounting processes to be appropriate and 
the draft accounts had been published well ahead of the deadline.  The quality 
of supporting working papers was considered as good.

Members’ attention was drawn to appendix 3 of the letter, which provided detail 
on the audit fee. The final fee of £47,273 (excluding VAT) was in line with the 
planned fee. An additional £3,000 (excluding VAT) was charged for additional 
audit-related services relating to the 2015/16 Pooling of Housing Capital 
Receipts Return, which was outside the Public Sector Audit Appointment’s 
certification regime. 

Certification work was still ongoing under the terms of Public Sector Audit 
Appointments in respect of the Authority’s housing benefit claim.  The indicative 
scale fee set for by PSAA was £5325 but the final fee for undertaking this 
prescribed work would be confirmed in January 2018 once the outcome of the 
work had been reported.

Members welcomed such a good report and Officers were complimented on the 
work that they had done to put the Council in the position to receive such a 
positive report.

The Committee noted the Annual Audit Letter 2016/17.

29. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

Amjad Ali Manager from RSM presented the Internal Audit Progress Report. He 
informed Members that Internal Audit was on schedule to complete its annual 
audit plan and report its findings by the end of the year. It was reported that 
59% of the audits within the 2016/17 plan had been completed, 1 audit was 
ongoing and the remainder were scheduled for early 2018. 

Since the last progress report had been presented to Committee, four audits 
had been completed:

Pg 4



 Cyber Security (reasonable assurance with 4 medium and 5 low risk actions 
agreed)

 Housing Benefit (substantial assurance with 2 medium and 1 low risk actions 
agreed)

 Payroll and Expenses (substantial assurance with 2 medium risk actions 
agreed)

 Risk Management (substantial assurance with 1 medium and 1 low risk 
actions agreed)

A summary of the medium risk actions was included in the report.

The Committee was given the opportunity to ask questions about the Internal 
Audit’s findings.

Housing Benefit

The medium risk action related to:

A sample of 15 users on the housing benefit system, in one instance a 
declaration of interest could not be located and for five members of staff, a 
declaration was on file signed and dated, but the declaration was out of date as 
it had not been completed in the last 12 months.

A sample of 10 weeks BACS payments confirmed in all instances the value of 
the payment corresponds throughout the process and appropriate authorisation 
in place.  However, it was noted that the same person submitting the BACS 
payment was also checking the submission value.  In addition, it was noted in 
all 10 instances the date of checking the submission was not documented.

Payroll and Expenses

The medium findings related to:

The testing of the payroll payment reports for April 2017 to September 
2017established that in one case there was no segregation of duties in the 
authorisation (transmitted by) and the checking of the BACS transmission 
report for one payroll payment run.

The testing of the payroll exception reports for the period April 2017 to 
September 2017 identified 15 instances where the payroll / exception reports 
were not subject to checking and/or review as the reports were not signed 
and/or dated to confirm this check.  On testing the BACS transmission reports 
and output reports testing had identified three cases where the document was 
not date / signed and dated and as a result it could not be confirmed if the 
reports had been checked or reviewed.

Pg 5



Risk Management

The audit had identified an action in relation to the review of Risk Management 
Group meeting minutes.  It was confirmed in some instances attendance from 
particular service areas was relatively poor.  As such, the process of identifying, 
evaluating, controlling and reviewing risks may not be adequate which could 
impact on that service area.

Cyber Security

The findings under this area were noted.

Members sought clarification on the definitions in respect of the criteria for the 
opinions issued and whether any timescales were set for addressing issues.

  High:  There was a concern, immediate action may be required,       
repercussions and impact

Medium: Actions were being taken to remedy the issue
Low:       Good housekeeping – risks are minimal

Officers were required to arrange the action to be undertaken to remedy any 
concerns but should the issue persist or not be addressed the auditors would 
comment.

It was agreed that the press and public would be excluded during the 
discussions in relation to the appendix to this report regarding Cyber 
Security because of the likelihood that information that is exempt under 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) to do with the Council’s Security would be disclosed to them.

Members were assured that measures were continually being put in place to 
protect the Council’s Cyber security and that training was being provided for 
both staff and members to identify potential security breaches.  

In conclusion, the Committee was informed of the timelines for the following 
reports:

Q2 – Health and Safety
Q3 – IT Review 2 – Software Development Lifecycle
        Corporate Governance
Q4 – Data Protection (This was in progress)
        Follow Up 3

Missed Bins was in progress.

Purchasing Cards – Advisory Review and Complaints and Freedom of 
Information – Advisory Reviews had not been allocated a commencement date 
as yet. 

Members noted the Internal Audit Progress Report.

Pg 6



30. INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP REPORT

Amjad Ali, Manager from RSM presented the Internal Audit Follow Up report for 
the year, which reviewed actions arising from three Internal Audit reports. He 
reported that the Council had demonstrated good progress in implementing the 
agreed management actions.

As part of the approved internal audit plan for 2017/18 a review to follow up 
progress made by the Council to implement the previously agreed management 
actions had been undertaken under the following areas:

 IT/Network Resilience (implementation was ongoing)
 Asset Management Plan (HRA) (implemented)
 Follow Up 1 (implemented)

The actions considered in this review comprised of three ‘medium’ and two ‘low’ 
priority management actions and the aim was to provide assurance that all 
actions previously made had been adequately implemented.

With regard to the findings of the issues identified and in line with the definitions 
set out in Appendix A the opinion was that South Kesteven District Council had 
demonstrated good progress in implementing the agreed management actions.

Members were informed that testing of systems was ongoing and that the 
implementation of any management actions was on target. No further 
clarification was sought by Members.

Members noted the Internal Audit Follow Up Report.

31. CORPORATE RISK REGISTER UPDATE

Decision:

To approve the updated Corporate Risk Register as attached at appendix 
A of report number CFM445.

The Corporate Risk Register formed a key part of the Council’s governance 
framework.  It is presented to the Governance and Audit Committee every 6 
months and was last presented to the Committee in June 2017 where it was 
agreed to include cyber risk.  This was due to constantly evolving threats and 
the profile of the Council being a potential target.  Whilst there were barriers of 
strength in place to help prevent a successful attack, this included a new 
educational awareness programme, inclusion of this risk showed due diligence 
and ensured that the risk got scrutinised as a major risk to the Council.  The 
Corporate Risk Register at Appendix A of the report had been updated to 
reflect any changes.  

Pg 7



It was proposed that an externally facilitated workshop would be undertaken in 
the new year to review the risk register in order to ensure it reflected the 
environment (both internal and external) the Council was working within.  The 
outcomes of the review would be presented to the Committee at the next risk 
register update presentation in June 2018.  

Members were informed that Councils in Lincolnshire liaised on a regular basis 
to discuss a range of issues such as cyber risk, bench marking and strategies.

In response to a query about cyber attacks and whether lessons had been 
learned from the recent attacks on outside organisations, Members were 
informed that barriers were in place and the IT resilience was continually 
monitored and scrutinised. Training for both officers and Members was also a 
high priority.   

The contents of the report were noted and it was proposed, seconded and 
agreed that the recommendation be approved.

32. COUNTER FRAUD ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

Decision:

To approve the Counter Fraud Annual Report CFM431 in respect of the 
Financial Year 2016-17

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee it was a 
requirement to produce an annual report on the counter fraud arrangements in 
place and the activities undertaken. Counter fraud was fundamental to the 
Council’s achievement of its strategic objectives. The report being presented 
covered the financial year 2016-17 and detailed the various aspects of work 
delivered during the course of the year.
 
The Council like any organisation was inherently vulnerable to the risk of fraud 
and corruption. It was vital that robust arrangements for the prevention and 
detection of fraud were maintained and the best information and knowledge 
used in order to ensure effective fraud prevention procedures were in place. 
The Assistant Director for Finance introduced the new Counter Fraud Officer to 
the Committee.

The Council’s Strategy was reviewed and updated in March 2016 to 
incorporate the new CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud 
and Corruption. 

There were 15 whistle-blowing concerns reported during 2016-17 all of which 
have been investigated and action taken where appropriate and reported back 
to the whistleblower where contact information had been provided.

The Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership (LCFP) continued to co-ordinate 
the response of the Lincolnshire local authorities in tackling high-risk areas of 
fraud against Councils. The group had now been extended to include 

Pg 8



representatives from the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) for 
Lincolnshire and Lincolnshire Police. All partners contributed to LCFP's funding 
in 2017/18.

The Council continued to actively contribute to the work of the partnership. 
Areas of progress the Partnership were looking at were the development of e-
learning and sharing with district partners to enable them to train their 
employees; successful delivery of a pilot Council Tax Reduction (CTR) review 
by a neighbouring authority which identified revenue of around £500k from CTR 
fraud and error. The approach would be rolled out across other districts in 
2018/19.

Other areas covered were the delivery of a housing tenancy fraud briefing to 
encourage Districts with housing stock to participate in a housing tenancy fraud 
data check and an emphasis on working collaboratively with Procurement 
Lincolnshire to embed counter fraud messages in the scheduled procurement 
training roll out. 

LCFP had also part funded a resource to deliver a pilot scheme to expand the 
National Non Domestic Rate base. The project identified potential missing and 
undervalued properties. 
The Committee welcomed the report and the work being undertaken to reduce 
fraud.

The Governance and Audit Committee noted and approved the Counter Fraud 
Annual Report for the financial year 2016-17.

33. TREASURY MID-YEAR REVIEW

Decision:

That the Governance and Audit Committee note and approve the contents 
of the mid-year review of Treasury Management activity for 2017/18 and 
approve the amendments to the Treasury Management Strategy 2017/18 
detailed within the report.

The Committee was reminded that the Council was required by regulations 
issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to produce regular reports on 
treasury and debt management operations during the financial year.  The report 
met the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management.

The Council had formally adopted key recommendations of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice for 
Treasury Management in the Public Services.  In line with the Code the Council 
had also adopted a treasury management policy statement that required 
regular reports on treasury and debt management operations during the 
financial year.

In addition under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003, there was a 
requirement on the Council to have regard to the Prudential Code for Capital 

Pg 9



Finance which included the setting of Prudential Indicators.  Relevant treasury 
management indicators were incorporated into the Treasury Management 
Strategy 2017/18 which had been approved by Council on 2 March 2017.

This report has been submitted in accordance with these requirements and 
provided a review of treasury management and current developments for the 
period ended 30 September 2017.  

No additional long term borrowing was required during the first half of 2017/18.  
All Council borrowing was with the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) and the 
average rate of interest paid on the debt portfolio was 2.82%.  Appendix A 
showed loans outstanding as at 30 September 2017.  Regular reviews were 
undertaken to consider redemption costs of natural maturity against new 
borrowing to settle the outstanding debt early.  As part of borrowing 
requirements around the HRA self financing proposals the Council had created 
two separate debt portfolios which apportioned the existing debt between the 
General Fund and HRA.  

Short-Term/Temporary Borrowing was defined as borrowing which was due to 
be repaid within 365 days.  At 30 September 2017, the Council had short term 
borrowing of £3.722m with the next loan due to mature in November 2017 to 
the value of £0.500m. The remaining £3.022m to be repaid in the future.  

The average size of the investment portfolio for the 6 month period was £69.9m 
compared to an average portfolio size of £62.2million during the same period in 
2016/17.  

The Council had a diverse portfolio and used a number of methods to invest its 
reserves which included direct deposit, certificate of deposits, notice accounts 
and money market funds.  As at 30th September 2017, the Council held short 
term investments of £51.418m (specified investments), and £20m long term 
investment (non-specified investments). The Treasury Management Strategy 
stipulated that the Council should not hold more than 35% of investments as 
non–specified investments and this was adhered to during the first half of 
2017/18.  The schedule of investments as at 30 September 2017 could be 
found at Appendix B.

For the period ended 30 September 2017 £14 m of short term fixed deposits 
and £2m of building society deposits were placed and £12m of investments 
matured within the period. 

For the period ended 30 September 2017, £3m long term fixed rate building 
society deposits were placed with £5m maturing during that period.   

Service Investments: Local Authority Mortgage Scheme – This scheme ended 
in 2016 but funds were still invested in the scheme.  This investment was on 5 
year term at 2.86% with a maturity date of 20th February 2019. 

The limits within the Treasury Management Strategy were set with regard to 
future spending plans and this included the Council’s capital programme.  With 

Pg 10



an ambitious capital programme being proposed, it was necessary to ensure 
flexibility in investments to allow cash flow management over both the short and 
longer terms. The proposal was for the following changes to made to the 
Treasury Management Strategy to give the Council more flexibility:  

Interest rates currently offered on short term investments had improved since 
the Bank of England changed the base rate.  The proposal was to increase the 
limit on specified investments from 30% to 45% - this indicator would include 
fixed term, instant access, and accounts with notice periods up to one year.

The strategy currently limited the amount to be invested with the top ten 
building societies (by asset size) to a total of £10m.  Building societies were 
currently offering a good rate of interest it was felt that it would be 
advantageous for the Council to increase this limit to £20m for short term 
investments, retaining the current maximum of £2m with any one institution.

The set limit for maximum principle sums invested for longer than a one year 
duration conflicted with the percentage limit set out in the strategy and the 
Council’s overall investments had increased. It was proposed to increase this 
limit from £15m to £25m, with comparable increases for future years, if 
investment levels remained constant. The maximum percentage for longer term 
investments would remain at 35%.  A higher level could mean that funding 
would not be available when required.

In addition the maximum limit per institution does not make clear whether it 
includes all investments, both specified and non-specified, or whether there 
were separate limits for the two categories.  The proposal was for the maximum 
limit per institution to be clarified as £12m for ALL investments, with a higher 
limit of £15m at the discretion of the section 151 Officer (or deputy) where an 
institution was considered to be of a higher credit quality.

In response to a query about who the S151 Officer’s Deputy was, Members 
were informed that this was determined by the S151 Officer, but in the first 
instance it was the Assistant Director of Finance.

It would also be necessary to clarify in the strategy, that on occasion, Capita 
Asset Services could be used as a fund manager, as well as the Council’s 
treasury advisers.

Members were informed that there were no long term investments over 2 years.

The recommendation was proposed and unanimously agreed by the  
Governance and Audit Committee to note and approve the contents of the mid-
year review of Treasury Management activity for 2017/18. The Committee also 
approved the amendments to the Treasury Management Strategy 2017/18 as 
detailed within the report.

Pg 11



34. ANY OTHER BUSINESS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASONS OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT.

HRA Capital Programme Update (Report RIM0375)

Members were reminded that a report to the Governance and Audit Committee 
on 20 September 2017 regarding the HRA Capital Programme had detailed 
circumstances contributing to underspends on the programme in previous 
years and the actions being taken to mitigate this 2017-18.  At that meeting, the 
Committee requested a further update on the programme for the next meeting. 
The report provided an update on performance on the programme to the end of 
period 7 of the 2017-18 financial year.

It was noted that in general there had been a marked improvement of the 
management and delivery of the HRA Capital programme for the year to date.  
Committed expenditure, this was for work orders placed, was currently 86% of 
the current forecasted profile. Actual expenditure, this was completed work, 
was currently 70% of the current forecasted expenditure profile. The figures 
were based on those figures recorded at the end of period 7 (October 2017).  
Appendix A provided a more detailed breakdown.

The progress of the overall capital programme had been adversely affected by 
the performance on the stock growth and acquisitions budget. The forecasted 
expenditure of £907K against the actual spend of £26K was due to  the 
speculative nature of the budget.  Re-profiling of the budget was required for a 
number of planned house purchases and site acquisitions currently ongoing to 
reflect expenditure more in line with the latest forecasts. It was expected that on 
completion of the purchases and site acquisitions the majority of this budget 
would be utilised before the financial year end.

To date, the committed expenditure, this was orders placed excluding Growth 
Budget, was currently 99% of the current forecasted profile. The actual 
expenditure, this was completed work excluding the Growth Budget, to date 
was currently 83% of the current forecasted expenditure profile.

Some slippage on the new build housing programme in respect of the 
completion of the final scheme at Trent Road was due to delayed utility works. 
This had resulted in expenditure to date being less than forecast. The scheme 
was on track to complete in December when the full cost of the work and fees 
would be reconciled.

Other slippage had been as a result of the re-wiring programme, but work was 
now progressing and the budget was expected to be spent by the end of the 
financial year.

Work around engagement with contractors working on the Capital programme 
was being undertaken through monthly contract progress meetings and 
performance against budget forecasts were being stringently monitored as part 
of these meetings. Contractors now had a clear understanding of the 
requirements and were on board with ensuring that any slippage was 

Pg 12



effectively managed and resources employed to recover where possible.

Members noted the update.

Action note: 

That the Governance and Audit Committee receive an update at the next 
meeting.

Governance and Audit Committee Membership:

The Chairman highlighted the need for additional Members to be trained so the 
Committee had access to substitute members as and when required.

Action Point

The Assistant Director, Finance to follow up and arrange training for additional 
Members.

35. CLOSE OF MEETING

The Chairman thanked everyone for attending and wished everyone Season’s 
Greetings.

The meeting closed at 3.15pm.

Pg 13



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Report of: 
Councillor A Stokes

Cabinet Member for Finance

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Governance and Audit Committee

22nd March 2018

HRA Capital Programme Update RIM404

Decision
Proposal:

None

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Cllr Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Andrew Sweeney: a.sweeney@southkesteven.gov.uk
Service Manager Housing Development & Improvements
Tel: 01476 406411 
Date: 7th March 2018

Harry Rai: Harry.rai@southketeven.gov.uk
Assistant Director Housing
Tel: 01476 406299
Date: 7th March 2018

Tracey Blackwell: t.blackwell@southkesteven.gov.uk
Strategic Director Environment and Property
Tel: 01476 406058
Date: 9th March 2018  

Cllr Adam Stokes a.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk
Cabinet Member for Finance
Date: 9th March 2018

SUMMARY
A report providing an update on performance on the Council’s HRA Capital programme 
for 2017-18 was presented to the Governance and Audit Committee in December 2017. 
The Committee requested that a further update on the programme be provided at the 
March 2018 meeting.

This report provides the latest update on the programme with regard to expenditure and 

Pg 14

Agenda Item 6

mailto:a.sweeney@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:Harry.rai@southketeven.gov.uk
mailto:t.blackwell@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:a.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk


delivery against profile and the overall budgets to the end of period 11 of the 2017-18 
financial year. 

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee is asked to:

1 Note the update report and performance on the HRA Capital programme.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT;

1.1 Reports to the Governance and Audit committee were presented in September 
and December 2017 in response to committee concerns over significant 
underspends in previous years on the HRA Capital programme.

1.2 A marked improvement in performance in terms of spend on the programme 
was reported at the December meeting following the implementation of a 
number of measures outlined in the report to the September committee.

1.3 In December committed expenditure (orders placed) was 86% of the forecasted 
profile. Actual expenditure (completions) was 70% of the current forecasted 
expenditure profile.

1.4 The December report reiterated the speculative nature of the Stock Growth and 
Acquisitions budget previously outlined in the September report. Expenditure on 
this budget is dependent on land and property acquisition opportunities to 
expand the housing portfolio arising during the course of the financial year.
Where limited opportunities arise and the budget remains uncommitted the 
underspend on the Growth budget adversely affects overall performance on the 
HRA Capital programme. 

1.5 The December report also therefore detailed performance excluding the Growth 
budget. Committed expenditure (orders placed excluding the Growth budget) 
reported in December was 99% of the current forecasted profile. Actual 
expenditure (completions excluding Growth budget) was 83% of the current 
forecasted expenditure profile.

 

2. CURRENT PROGRESS AND PERFORMANCE.
 

2.1 The delivery of the HRA Capital programme has continued into quarter four.
At the end of Period 11 Committed expenditure (orders placed) is 83% of the 
current forecasted profile. Actual expenditure (completions) is 78% of the 
current forecasted expenditure profile. A summary of the period 11 budgets and 
expenditure is included at Appendix A.

Pg 15



2.2 A number of budgets in the programme are now forecasted to underspend as a 
result of a number of events affecting expenditure. These are detailed below.

Stock Growth and Acquisitions Budget 
2.2.1 A budget of £1.540m is included in the capital programme for stock growth and 

acquisitions. 

2.2.2 Following the submission of details to the Growth Board approval was given to 
negotiate/bid for the purchase of three potential housing sites in Grantham. The 
purchase of the three sites if completed would have expended all of the growth 
budget for 2017-18.The Council’s bid for one of the sites was unsuccessful. The 
other two are unlikely to result in the completion of purchases before the 
financial year end. The majority of the £1.540m budget is therefore likely to be 
committed (subject to final approval to purchase the sites) but not spent.

2.3 New Build Housing Programme

2.3.1 £2,213k is included in the capital budget for 2017-18 for new build housing 
projects. All three schemes are now completed. A claim for additional costs of 
c£200k across the three schemes was submitted by the main contractor 
appointed under the East Midlands Property Alliance (EMPA) framework. In the 
event of these being bona-fide claims under the contract the Council would 
have been obligated to pay these to the contractor.

2.3.2 The claim was however challenged and following stalled negotiations with the 
Contractor the assistance of EMPA requested to mediate. Agreement was 
eventually reached on the claim resulting in a significant reduction and the 
additional costs due from the Council being contained within the existing 
scheme budgets.

  
2.4 Capital Improvement Works 

2.4.1 Electrical Re-wiring Programme
Despite measures taken to mitigate its impacts the continuation of issues with 
refusals and no access highlighted in previous reports has still affected 
performance on the re-wires programme. The increase in the turnover of 
property completions following an increase in the contractors resources on site 
has also not materialised to the extent anticipated. As a result the forecasted 
expenditure against the current committed budget of £227k is c£115k. A 
forecasted underspend of c£135k 

2.4.2 The re-procurement of the re-wiring contract is currently in progress for the 
forthcoming year (2018-19). Before the appointment of a contractor is made 
reassurances on their ability to deliver will be sought in an effort to overcome 
some of the problems being experienced this year.

Replacement Doors & Windows
2.4.3 The budget variance to date on the programme is currently c£41k.The cost of a 

number of window replacements was paid in early March totalling £35k and 
outstanding work in progress when completed will fully expend the £100k 
budget.

Pg 16



2.5 Repairs Vehicles

2.5.1 The period 11 accounts currently show a variance of £211k against the forecast 
and a commitment to year end of c£338k against the overall budget of £474k.
The delivery of new vehicles commenced early in March and the expenditure of 
the committed budget will be achieved resulting in an underspend of c£136k .

3. PROJECTED OUTTURN POSITION

3.1 Based on the period 11 management accounts the outturn position at year end 
is forecasted to be £7.116m against the HRA Capital budget of £8.991m.
(80% spend on the overall budget). 

3.2 Taking account of the impact of the Growth and Acquisitions budget the 
projected outturn position at year end (excluding this budget) is forecasted to be 
£6.915m against a budget of £7.437m. (93% spend of the overall budget).

3.3 A comparison of projected outturn position for all HRA Capital budgets for 2017-
18 against last year’s outturn (2016-17) is included in the table below:

Budget Outturn 2017-18 Forecast v 2016-17 Actual
Budget Actual % Spend

2016-17 £9.700m £5.746m 60%
2017-18 £8.991m £7.116m* 80%
*Forecast at end of period 11 2018

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 None

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 None

6. RISK AND MITIGATION 

Risk has been considered as part of this report and measures implemented to 
manage relevant risks on capital programme expenditure.     

Category Risk Action / Controls

7. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

7.1 None

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

Pg 17



8.1 None

9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

9.1 A robust capital budget monitoring process is in place.  Expenditure is reviewed 
monthly and variances against budget are investigated with the budget holder. 

10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

10.1 The housing revenue account must be administered in accordance with the 
Local Government Housing Act 1989 and any directions made by the Secretary 
of State under s78 of that Act.

11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

11.1 None

12. APPENDICES

12.1 None

13. BACKGROUND PAPERS

13.1 Governance and Audit Committee 14th December 2017 – Report of Cabinet 
Member for Finance. HRA Capital Programme Update 2017/18 RIM0375 

Governance and Audit Committee 20th September 2017 – Report of Cabinet 
Member for Finance. HRA Capital Programme Update 2017/18 RIM0372 

Governance and Audit Committee 29th June 2017 – Report of Cabinet Member 
for Finance. Outturn Position 2016/17 CFM418 

Pg 18



APPENDIX A 2017/18 HRA Capital Programme - Monthly Monitoring Statement to 28th February (Period 11)

Scheme
Job 

Code
Scheme Description

Scheme 

Manager

Original 

Budget

Latest Budget 

Annual

Latest Budget 

YTD
YTD Actuals

Immediate 

Commitments
Accruals YTD Exp YTD Variance

Additional 

2017/18 

Committed 

Spend

Total Actual 

and 

Committed 

Spend

Forecast 

Outturn

Energy Effieciency Initiatives J80103 Heating And Ventilation Andrew Sweeney 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,191,667 1,164,455 25,444 2,715 1,192,614 947 0 1,192,614 1,300,000

Energy Effieciency Initiatives Total 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,191,667 1,164,455 25,444 2,715 1,192,614 947 0 1,192,614 1,300,000

Purchase of Vehicles J80126 Repairs Vehicles Phil Longhorn 352,000 474,000 340,000 128,946 209,459 0 338,405 (1,595) 0 338,405 338,405

Purchase of Vehicles Total 352,000 474,000 340,000 128,946 209,459 0 338,405 (1,595) 0 338,405 338,405

Refurbishment & Improvement J80107
Kitchens & Bathrooms 

Programmes
Andrew Sweeney 1,000,000 1,000,000 950,000 942,382 20,000 0 962,382 12,382 47,011 1,009,393 1,000,000

J80110 Roofing Andrew Sweeney 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,008,333 1,038,199 2,210 38,988 1,079,397 71,064 34,175 1,113,572 1,100,000

J80111 Electrical Rewires Andrew Sweeney 250,000 250,000 223,000 89,485 74,150 3,342 166,977 (56,023) 59,782 226,759 125,000

J80146
Replacement Door 

Programme
Andrew Sweeney 100,000 100,000 91,667 50,620 49,045 0 99,665 7,998 2,520 102,185 100,000

J80149 External Wall Insulation Andrew Sweeney 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 972,853 2,235 1,125 976,213 (23,787) 0 976,213 1,000,000

J80152 New Build Properties Andrew Sweeney 2,213,000 2,213,000 2,213,000 1,952,193 2,640 0 1,954,833 (258,167) 0 1,954,833 1,952,193

J80161 Stock Growth & Acquistions Andrew Sweeney 1,554,000 1,554,000 1,424,500 186,776 13,994 0 200,770 (1,223,730) 0 200,770 200,770

Refurbishment & 

Improvement
Total 7,217,000 7,217,000 6,910,500 5,232,508 164,274 43,455 5,440,237 (1,470,263) 143,488 5,583,725 5,477,963

Grand Total 8,869,000 8,991,000 8,442,167 6,525,909 399,177 46,170 6,971,256 (1,470,911) 143,488 7,114,744 7,116,368

P
g 19



Annual Report on grants 
and returns 2016/17

South Kesteven District Council

—

January 2018P
g 20

A
genda Item

 7



2

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Contents

The contacts at KPMG 

in connection with this 

report are:

John Cornett
Director

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0116 256 6064 

john.cornett@kpmg.co.uk

Mike Norman
Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0115 935 3554

michael.norman@kpmg.co.uk

Kerry Sharma
Assistant Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0115 935 3652 
Kerry.sharma@kpmg.co.uk

Page

Headlines 3

Summary of reporting outcomes and fees 4

Summary of certification work outcomes 5

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties. 
Public Sector Audit Appointments issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what 
is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this document which is available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the law and 
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact John Cornett, the 
engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s work under our contract 
with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers (andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, in relation to the certification of the Housing Benefit Subsidy grant claim, if you are still 
dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by writing to Public 
Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.

P
g 21



3

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Introduction and background

This report summarises the results of work we have carried out on the Council’s 
2016/17 grant claims and returns. 

This includes the work we have completed under the Public Sector Audit Appointment 
certification arrangements, as well as the work we have completed on other 
grants/returns under separate engagement terms. The work completed in 2016/17 is:

– Under the Public Sector Audit Appointments arrangements we certified one claim 
– the Council’s 2016/17 Housing Benefit Subsidy claim. This had a value of 
£29,587,864.

– Under separate assurance engagement we provided a Reporting Accountant’s 
report on the Authority’s 2016/17 Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return. This 
had a value of £2,756,150. 

Certification and assurance results

Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim

Our work included: 

– agreeing standard rates, such as for allowances and benefit incomes, to the DWP 
Circular communicating the value of each rate for the year; 

– sample testing of benefit claims to confirm that the entitlement had been 
correctly calculated and was supported by appropriate evidence; 

– undertaking an analytical review of the claim form considering year-on-year 
variances and key ratios; 

– confirming that the subsidy claim had been prepared using the correct benefits 
system version; and 

– completing testing in relation to modified schemes payments, uncashed cheques 
and verifying the accurate completion of the claim form.

Following the completion of our work, the claim was subject to a qualification letter. 
The claim was also adjusted to correct errors identified by management after the 
original claim had been submitted. These adjustments resulted in an overall £169 
reduction in the amount of subsidy due to the Authority.

Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts Return

Our work was carried out in accordance with the instructions agreed with DCLG and 
required us to confirm whether specified entries on the Return were consistent with 
the applicable criteria.  We gave an unqualified Accountant’s Report on the return. No 
amendments were made to the return. 

Recommendations

There are no recommendations to the Authority arising from our work this year.

Fees

The indicative fee for our work on the Council’s 2016/17 Housing Benefit Subsidy was 
set by Public Sector Audit Appointments at £5,325. The actual fee for this work was 
£6,296.

Our fee for the Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return engagement (£3,000) was 
agreed directly with the Authority.

Headlines
Annual report on grants and returns 2016/17

P
g 22



4

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Overall, we carried out 

work on 2 grants and 

returns:

– One was unqualified 

with no adjustments; 

and

– One was qualified 

and required minor 

adjustments

We have applied to PSAA 
for a fee variation to 
cover the costs of the 
additional audit work 
required in certifying the 
Housing Benefit Subsidy 
claim.

We have made no 
recommendations as a 
result of the work carried 
out this year.

Detailed below is a summary of the reporting outcomes from our work on the Council’s 2016/17 grants and returns, showing where either 
audit amendments were made as a result of our work or where we had to qualify our audit certificate or assurance report. 

A qualification means that issues were identified concerning the Council’s compliance with a scheme’s requirements that could not be 
resolved through adjustment. In these circumstances, it is likely that the relevant grant paying body will require further information from the 
Council to satisfy itself that the full amounts of grant claimed are appropriate.

The Housing Subsidy Benefit claim was adjusted to correct errors identified during the certification work. The amendments made and basis for 
the claim’s qualification are summarised overleaf. 

Fees charged

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) certification arrangements - PSAA set an indicative fee for the 2016/17 work on the Authority’s 
Housing Benefit Subsidy of £5,325. Our proposed fee is £6,296 (£6,063 2016/17). The main reason for the fee exceeding PSAA’s original 
estimate is additional work required as a result of the errors identified in the initial testing. This fee is still subject to approval by the PSAA.

Grants subject to other assurance engagements - The fee for our assurance work on the Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts Return was 
agreed directly with the Authority. Our fee for 2016/17 was £3,000 (2015/16 £3,000). 

Recommendations

We have made no recommendations as a result of the work carried out this year. There are recommendations outstanding from our 2016/17 
work.

Summary of reporting outcomes
Annual report on grants and returns 2016/17

Qualified
Significant
adjustment

Minor
adjustment 

Unqualified

Public Sector Audit Appointments regime

— Housing Benefit Subsidy

Other grant/return engagements

— Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts Return

P
g 23



5

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

This table summarises the 

key issues behind each of the 

adjustments or qualifications 

that were identified on the 

previous page.

Summary of certification work outcomes
Annual report on grants and returns 2016/17

Summary observations Amendment

Housing Benefit Subsidy

■ Testing of our initial random sample of 20 rent allowance cases identified no errors. However, in the 
previous year we had identified and reported on errors due to the incorrect earned income values being 
used. As required by the mandated certification approach we tested an additional random sample of 40 
cases from the sub-population of cases with earned income. This identified 14 cases where the incorrect 
earned income value had been used, and in 6 cases this resulted in an overpayment of benefit due. The total 
extrapolated error across this sub-population of 2016/17 claims was £3,676 (the 2015/16 total extrapolated 
error was £8,984).  

■ We reported our findings to the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) in the Qualification Letter which 
we submitted with the certified claim. DWP will consider the findings of the certification work, and may 
contact officers to request additional work on the issues identified. 

■ The amount of subsidy due to the Council through the claim was reduced by £169 as a result of changes 
made to the original claim submitted. These changes were largely to take account of routine year-end 
reconciliation adjustments which had not been processed before the claim’s submission deadline. The 
certified amended claim was submitted to DWP by the 30 November 2017 deadline.

- £169

P
g 24



Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

kpmg.com/uk

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
g 25



 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT 

COUNCIL 

Internal Audit Strategy 2018/19 - 2020/21 

Presented at the Governance and Audit 
Committee meeting of: 22 March 2018 
 

Pg 26

Agenda Item 8



     

 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 1 

CONTENTS 
1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2 Developing the internal audit strategy .......................................................................................................................... 3 

3 Your internal audit service ............................................................................................................................................ 5 

4 Governance and audit committee requirements .......................................................................................................... 6 

Appendix A: Internal audit plan 2018/19 ........................................................................................................................... 7 

Appendix B: Internal audit strategy 2018/19 – 2020/21 .................................................................................................. 10 

Appendix C: Internal audit charter ................................................................................................................................... 14 

Appendix D: Our client care standards ........................................................................................................................... 18 

For further information contact ........................................................................................................................................ 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pg 27



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 2 

1.1 Background 

The district covers 365 square miles and consists of four distinctive market towns, over 90 rural villages, excellent 

transport links and a growing population. The Council like other public sector organisations continues to face 

challenges as part of the national deficit reduction programme. In an attempt to counter this, the Council has 

introduced a transformation and commercialism programme which will enable them to be self-financing by 2019/20. To 

support this, the Council has, amongst many initiatives introduced a commercial investment strategy and established a 

Local Authority controlled company. The company will focus on delivering quality housing in the district. 
 

The detailed Internal Audit Plan (see appendix A) will support the Council in the forthcoming year to achieve their 

priorities stated above. 

 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 

Our approach to developing your internal audit plan is based on analysing your corporate 

objectives, risk profile and assurance framework as well as other, factors affecting South Kesteven 

District Council in the year ahead, including changes within the public sector.  

Pg 28



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 3 

2.1 Risk Management processes 

We have used various sources of information (see Figure A below) and discussed priorities for internal audit coverage 

with the Strategic Directors, Assistant Directors and their managers.  

Based on our understanding of the Council, and the information provided to us by the stakeholders above, we have 

developed an annual internal plan for the coming year and a high level strategic plan (see Appendix A and B for full 

details).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure A: Sources considered when developing the Internal Audit Strategy 

2 DEVELOPING THE INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY 

We use your objectives as the starting point in the development of your internal audit plan. 

Assurance 

journey for the 

audit plan 

Emerging 
issues in 
the sector 

Risk 
register 

Council 
reports 

Governance 
and Audit 
Committee 
requests 

Corporate 
Plan 

Requests 
from 
management 

Previous 
IA findings 

Pg 29



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 4 

 

 

2.2 How the plan links to your strategic objectives  

Each of the reviews that we propose to undertake is detailed in the internal audit plan and strategy within Appendices 

A and B.  In the table below we bring to your attention particular key audit areas and discuss the rationale for their 

inclusion within the strategy. 

Area Reason for inclusion in the audit plan/strategy 

Payroll The Council is in the process of implementing a new Payroll system which will go live in 

April 2018. Management have requested a Payroll review in 2018/19 to provide 

assurance that the payroll system is embedded and working effectively. 

GDPR The significant change in the requirements of Data Protection within our clients as result 

of the 2016 Major Overhaul of EU Data Protection Laws will impact on the Council and 

its key stakeholders.  

The potential fines for a data breach will be significantly higher and there is a greater 

requirement for more stringent control processes to manage, store, transmit and secure 

confidential information.  

Management have requested a GDPR post implementation review in 2018/19. 

IT As technology and technology related threats and opportunities continue to evolve, it is 

imperative that organisations have a clear understanding of how these impact on their 

day to day operations. Risks associated with IT feature on the Council’s corporate risk 

register. We have included IT in the 2018/19 plan and coverage will be agreed with 

management. 

Fire Safety Following the Grenfell tragedy, there is increased focus in this area. The welfare of staff, 
residents, contractors and other stakeholders is paramount. The Council need to ensure 
that they comply with Health and Safety legislation and internal policies and procedures. 
Management has requested an internal audit review of Fire Safety.  

 

As well as assignments designed to provide assurance or advisory input around specific risks, the strategy also 

includes: a contingency allocation, time for tracking the implementation of actions and an audit management 

allocation. Full details of these can be found in Appendices A and B.  

2.3 Working with other assurance providers 

The Governance and Audit Committee is reminded that internal audit is only one source of assurance and through the 

delivery of our plan we will not, and do not, seek to cover all risks and processes within the Council.  

We will however continue to work closely with other assurance providers, such as external audit to ensure that 

duplication is minimised and a suitable breadth of assurance obtained.  

Pg 30



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 5 

3.1 Conformance with internal auditing standards 

RSM affirms that our internal audit services are designed to conform to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

(PSIAS).  

Under PSIAS, internal audit services are required to have an external quality assessment every five years. Our risk 

assurance service line commissioned an external independent review of our internal audit services in 2016 to provide 

assurance as to whether our approach meets the requirements of the International Professional Practices Framework 

(IPPF) published by the Global Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) on which PSIAS is based.   

The external review concluded that “there is a robust approach to the annual and assignment planning processes and 

the documentation reviewed was thorough in both terms of reports provided to Governance & Audit Committee and 

the supporting working papers.” RSM was found to have an excellent level of conformance with the IIA’s professional 

standards.  

The risk assurance service line has in place a quality assurance and improvement programme to ensure continuous 

improvement of our internal audit services. Resulting from the programme, there are no areas which we believe 

warrant flagging to your attention as impacting on the quality of the service we provide to you. 

3.2 Conflicts of interest 

We are not aware of any relationships that may affect the independence and objectivity of the team, and which are 

required to be disclosed under internal auditing standards.  

3 YOUR INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

Your internal audit service is provided by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP. The team will be led 

by Chris Williams (Engagement Partner), supported by Amjad Ali as your Client Manager. 

Pg 31



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 6 

In approving the internal audit strategy, the Committee is asked to consider the following: 

• Is the Governance and Audit Committee satisfied that sufficient assurances are being received within our annual 

plan (as set out at Appendix A) to monitor the Council’s risk profile effectively? 

• Does the strategy for internal audit (as set out at Appendix B) cover the Council’s key risks as they are recognised 

by the Governance and Audit Committee? 

• Are the areas selected for coverage this coming year appropriate? 

• Is the Governance and Audit Committee content that the standards within the charter in Appendix C are appropriate 

to monitor the performance of internal audit? 

It may be necessary to update our plan in year should your risk profile change and different risks emerge that could 

benefit from internal audit input. We will ensure that management and the Governance and Audit Committee approve 

such amendments to this plan. 

4 GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
REQUIREMENTS 

Pg 32



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 7 

Audit High Level Scope for 2018/19  Days Proposed     

timing 

Strategic 

Corporate Governance Continued annual assurance focussing on 
compliance with the constitution. We will also 
consider the key elements of governance and the 
effectiveness and ability to react to and provide 
informed decisions. 

5 Quarter 4 

Transformation and Change 

IT Review  To review the processes employed by the Council 

and for the management of risks in relation to the 

Council’s IT network. Exact scope to be agreed with 

management. 

8 Quarter 3 

Flexible Working To provide assurance that the Council has policies 
and procedures in place which allows flexible 
working, to ensure that risk assessments have been 
undertaken, staff have been provided with relevant 
training and systems are in place to stay in touch 
with staff. 

7 Quarter 2 

Programmes and 

Performance Management 

This review will focus on how programmes are linked 
to the Council’s plans and priorities. Our review will 
include ownership of programmes and performance 
management, data collection and the roles of 
responsibilities in relation to programmes and 
performance management. 

7 Quarter 1 

Legal and Democratic 

GDPR – Post 

Implementation Review 

This post implementation review will provide 
assurance that the principles of data protection are 
being applied consistently and effectively throughout 
the Council. 

7 Quarter 2 

Members Allowances and 

Expenses 

To ensure that Members’ Allowances and Expenses 
are only paid in accordance with documented policy 
and procedure, and in line with statutory legislation. 

6 Quarter 3 

Finance 

Purchase Orders and 

Creditors 

This review will ensure that Financial Regulations 
and policies and procedures are being complied with 
and that all purchases are done so in line with 
delegated authority limits. We will also review the 
process from the ordering of goods through to the 
payment of the invoice, ensuring goods are received 
prior to payment being made and a full segregation 
is in place between each stage of the process. We 
will look to use data interrogation software to 
supplement our testing. 

8 Quarter 3 

APPENDIX A: INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19 

Pg 33



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 8 

Audit High Level Scope for 2018/19  Days Proposed     

timing 

NNDR We will provide assurance that policies and 

procedures in relation to NNDR are followed and 

correct charges are being applied. This will include 

identification and recording of persons liable for 

NNDR, billing methods and payment collection, 

recovery and write offs, segregation of duties, rates 

relief, refunds, inspection of void properties and 

completion of NNDR returns. We will look to use 

data interrogation software to supplement our 

testing. 

7 Quarter 2 

Payroll and Expenses We will review the process for dealing with starters 

and leavers and amendments to payroll to ensure 

that the payroll is accurate. This review will also 

ensure that there is a robust expenses policy in 

place which staff adhere to. We will look to use data 

interrogation software to supplement our testing. 

8 Quarter 3 

Housing Benefits (including 

Electronic Benefits) 

We will undertake a review to ensure that 
applications received are done so in line with policy 
and procedure, and are subject to an independent 
check. We will also ensure that changes in 
circumstances are processed correctly and in a 
timely manner. We will also ensure that Officers are 
not able to work on their own accounts and that an 
annual declaration is completed. We will review the 
payment process and also the procedure for 
identifying and recovering an overpayment.  

8 Quarter 4 

Housing 

Fire Safety Our review will cover Health and Safety in respect of 
Fire Safety. We will review policies and procedures 
in place, risk assessments, training, information 
provided to staff and contractors and compliance 
with legislation. This review will cover the Council’s 
general properties and sheltered housing properties.  

8 Quarter 3 

Rent Collection and Arrears Areas of consideration within this review will include: 
the recording and monitoring of rent income, 
invoicing, collection of outstanding debt, 
performance and arrears monitoring and 
management reporting.  

8 Quarter 2 

Environment 

CCTV Review of arrangements in place for the monitoring 
of CCTV cameras including compliance with data 
protection, disclosure and security of footage, 
sharing of service with other agencies, staff training, 
backups and CCTV signage.  

5 Quarter 1 

Pg 34



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 9 

Audit High Level Scope for 2018/19  Days Proposed     

timing 

Growth and Development 

Land Charges To provide assurance that appropriate arrangements 

are in place to maintain the Land Charges register is 

up to date, and that all applications and searches are 

handled in line with procedure, the relevant fees are 

received and that joint working is undertaken with 

other key Council departments.  

6 Quarter 2 

Pre-Application Fees This review will seek to ensure that policies and 
procedures in relation to fees charged for pre- 
application planning advice are followed and all such 
applications are processed timely. Our review will 
also provide assurance that fees are set within 
statutory guidelines and all debtors are followed up. 

6 Quarter 1 

Property Delivery 

Construction Regulations To provide assurance that the Council is complying 

with the Construction (Design Management) 

Regulations and projects are suitably managed 

including assessing risks for each project, 

undertaking risk assessments and regular 

communication with key stakeholders (staff, 

contractors and residents). 

 

7 Quarter 2 

Other internal audit activity 

Contingency To allow additional reviews to be undertaken in 
agreement with the Governance and Audit 
Committee or management based in changes in risk 
profile or assurance needs as they arise during the 
year.  

 
 

14 Tbc 

Follow up To meet internal auditing standards, and to provide 
assurance on action taken to address previously 
agreed management actions. 

10 Quarter 1 

Quarter 2 

 

Management  This will include: 

• Annual planning; 

• Preparation for, and attendance at, Governance 

and Audit Committee; 

• Regular liaison and progress updates; 

• Liaison with external audit and other assurance 

providers; and 

• Preparation of the annual opinion. 

 

 

 

22 

 

 

 

Throughout the 

year 

    

 

Pg 35



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 10 

Proposed area for coverage Potential Risks 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Strategic 

Corporate Governance The Council’s governance arrangements do not 

provide assurance to management or members for 

accountability purposes. 

✓  ✓ 

Risk Management  The Council does not have a clear methodology in 

place for identifying and mitigating key risks. 

 ✓  

Procurement and Contracts Contract procedure rules are not adhered to. 

Procurement legislation is not adhered to. 

Best value is not sought prior to letting contracts or 

expenditure. 

The performance of key suppliers is not monitored. 

 ✓  

Transformation and Change 

Recruitment and Retention Inadequate recruitment practices leading to 

inconsistencies. 

 ✓  

IT Review Unauthorised access to IT equipment, systems and 

data. 

Loss or failure of the system resulting in inability to 

continue processing and potential data corruption. 

✓ ✓ ✓ 

Apprenticeship – Learning and 

Development 

Failure of the apprenticeship programme.  ✓  

Flexible Working Compliance with flexible working practices are not 

monitored. 

✓   

Document Management and 

CRM 

There is an inadequate control framework in place 
governing the operation of the Document 
Management and CRM system. 

Inaccurate or incomplete recording in the CRM 
system. 

Poor customer satisfaction 

 ✓  

Programmes and Performance 

Management 

No performance policy / criteria have been set / 

agreed and performance indicators are not linked 

to the Council's objectives. 

Project milestones and outcomes are not clearly 

defined. 

Council and project key performance indicators are 

not monitored or investigated, therefore 

compromising quality and the Council not being 

able to identify non-achievement of its objectives. 

✓  ✓ 

APPENDIX B: INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY 2018/19 – 
2020/21 

Pg 36



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 11 

Proposed area for coverage Potential Risks 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Legal and Democratic 

Code of Conduct The Code of Conduct is not adequate and being 

complied with. 

 ✓  

GDPR – Post Implementation 

Review 

Failure to comply with the Data Protection 

legislation. 

✓   

Members Allowances and 

Expenses 

Payment of allowances and expenses are not 

adequately documented in procedures. 

Expenses claims are not made on official forms or 

approved prior to processing. 

Management information is not being produced to 

monitor allowances and expenses being paid. 

✓   

Finance 

Purchase Orders and Creditors Financial loss to the Council through unnecessary 

and unapproved invoices being paid. 

✓   

NNDR Bills are not raised in a timely manner and relevant 

properties within the District have not been 

identified. 

✓   

Payroll and Expenses Payroll records are not properly controlled resulting 

in financial loss to the Council. 

✓   

Council Tax Failure to raise accurate demand notices to liable 

parties. 

 ✓  

Housing Benefits (including 

Electronic Benefits) 

Claims are not processed in line with legislation. 

E-revenue opportunities have not been embraced 

and acted upon. 

✓  ✓ 

Treasury Management Insufficient cash available to meet liabilities. 

The Council do not optimise interest on investment. 

  ✓ 

Housing 

Housing Allocations Lack of an effective Housing Strategy. 

Incorrect application of the housing allocations 

Policy  

 ✓  

Homelessness The Council have failed to respond to their 

statutory duty in relation to homelessness. 

 ✓  

Fire Safety Serious breach of Health and Safety legislation. ✓   

Void Management Void properties are not managed to ensure there 

are processed and re-let as soon as is possible, 

resulting in loss of rental income. 

 ✓  

Resident Involvement Resident dissatisfaction with quality of 

accommodation, neighbourhood or services 

leading to increased management time and loss of 

reputation. 

  ✓ 

Pg 37



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 12 

Proposed area for coverage Potential Risks 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Rent Collection and Arrears Failure to provide an excellent rent collection 

service. 

Rent arrears are not identified / monitored and 

recovery action taken in accordance with internal 

procedures and relevant legislation. 

Collection levels are not monitored. 

✓   

Repairs and Maintenance Failure to maintain the stock to good modern 

standards, leading to reduced value of stock, 

resident dissatisfaction, low demand/ difficulty in 

letting. 

  ✓ 

Environment 

Houses in Multiple Occupation Failure to identify, licence and monitor Houses in 

Multiple Occupation within the District. 

 ✓  

Enforcement  The Council fails to take appropriate, consistent 

action against those breaching legislation, policy or 

decisions made. 

 ✓  

Ground Maintenance Failure in operational performance. 

Consistent and prompt action is not taken when 

dealing with customer enquires/ complaints. 

  ✓ 

CCTV Inadequate control over CCTV operations. 

Failure to obtain correct authorisation when 

disclosing footage. 

Failure to display appropriate signage where CCTV 

is in operation. 

✓   

Community Safety and Anti-

Social Behaviour 

Safety issues raised by residents are not 

addressed in a timely and effective manner. 

  ✓ 

Trade Waste Lack of clearly defined policy on trade refuse. 

Failure to ensure all premises receiving trade 

refuse removal services are making appropriate 

payments. 

Failure to comply with Health & Safety legislation. 

 ✓  

Growth and Development 

Economic Development  Failure to achieve the Council’s economic 

objectives in line with its Economic Development 

Action Plan. 

 ✓  

Land Charges The Land Charge Register is not accurate and up 

to date. 

✓   

Car Park Usage of car parks is not monitored, resulting in 

over or under provision of facilities. 

Approved Fees and Charges are not applied. 

 ✓  

Leisure Centres Failure to provide and maintain Leisure centres.   ✓ 

Pg 38



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 13 

Proposed area for coverage Potential Risks 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Planning Service Planning applications and inspections are not 

processed correctly or accurately or in accordance 

with planning legislation. 

Poor decision making, due to poor quality or 

timeliness of information provided to management. 

  ✓ 

Pre-Application Fees Failure to identify and maximise potential revenue 

from pre- application advice. 

Losses due to fraud or error, inefficient processing 

or inappropriate activity. 

✓   

Property Delivery 

Construction Regulations Serious breach of Health and Safety Construction 

Regulations. 

✓   

Leases Leases are issued / renewed without appropriate 

authorisation. 

Expired leases are not promptly detected. 

  ✓ 

Other Internal Audit Activity     

Contingency To allow additional reviews to be undertaken in 
agreement with the Governance and Audit 
Committee or management based in changes in 
risk profile or assurance needs as they arise during 
the year.  

✓ ✓ ✓ 

Follow up  To meet internal auditing standards, and to provide 

assurance on action taken to address previously 

agreed management actions. 

✓ ✓ ✓ 

Management  This will include: 

• Annual planning 

• Preparation for, and attendance at, Governance 

and Audit Committee 

• Regular liaison and progress updates 

• Liaison with external audit and other assurance 

providers 

• Preparation of the annual opinion 

✓ ✓ ✓ 

Pg 39



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 14 

Need for the charter 

This charter establishes the purpose, authority and responsibilities for the internal audit service for South Kesteven 

District Council. The establishment of a charter is a requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

and approval of the charter is the responsibility of the Governance and Audit Committee.  

The internal audit service is provided by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP (“RSM”). 

We plan and perform our internal audit work with a view to reviewing and evaluating the risk management, control and 

governance arrangements that the Council has in place, focusing in particular on how these arrangements help you to 

achieve its objectives. The internal audit function is required to comply with the mandatory elements of the Institute of 

Internal Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF). 

The PSIAS encompass the mandatory elements of the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) International Professional 

Practices Framework (IPPF) as follows: 

• Core principles for the professional practice of internal auditing 

• Definition of internal auditing 

• Code of ethics; and 

• The Standards  

An overview of our client care standards are included at appendix D of the internal audit strategy plan for 2018/19 – 

2020/21.  

Mission of internal audit 

As set out in the IPPF, the mission articulates what internal audit aspires to accomplish within an organisation. Its 
place in the IPPF is deliberate, demonstrating how practitioners should leverage the entire framework to facilitate their 
ability to achieve the mission. 

“To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and 

insight”. 

Independence and ethics  

To provide for the independence of internal audit, its personnel report directly to Chris Williams, Partner (acting as 

your Head of Internal Audit). The independence of RSM is assured by the internal audit service reporting to the Chief 

Executive, with further reporting lines to Strategic Director and s151 Officer. 

The Head of Internal Audit has unrestricted access to the Chair of Governance and Audit Committee to whom all 

significant concerns relating to the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management activities, internal control and 

governance are reported. 

  

APPENDIX C: INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 

Pg 40

https://na.theiia.org/standards-guidance/mandatory-guidance/Pages/Core-Principles-for-the-Professional-Practice-of-Internal-Auditing.aspx


 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 15 

Conflicts of interest may arise where RSM provides services other than internal audit to South Kesteven District 

Council. Steps will be taken to avoid or manage transparently and openly such conflicts of interest so that there is no 

real or perceived threat or impairment to independence in providing the internal audit service. If a potential conflict 

arises through the provision of other services, disclosure will be reported to the Governance and Audit Committee. The 

nature of the disclosure will depend upon the potential impairment and it is important that our role does not appear to 

be compromised in reporting the matter to the Governance and Audit Committee. Equally we do not want the 

organisation to be deprived of wider RSM expertise and will therefore raise awareness without compromising our 

independence. 

Responsibilities  

In providing your outsourced internal audit service, RSM has a responsibility to: 

• Develop a flexible and risk based internal audit strategy with more detailed annual audit plans. The plan will be 

submitted to the Governance and Audit Committee for review and approval each year before work commences on 

delivery of that plan. 

• Implement the internal audit plan as approved, including any additional tasks requested by management and the 

Governance and Audit Committee. 

• Ensure the internal audit team consists of professional audit staff with sufficient knowledge, skills and experience. 

• Establish a Quality Assurance and Improvement Program to ensure the quality and effective operation of internal 

audit activities. 

• Perform advisory activities where appropriate, beyond internal audit’s assurance services, to assist management in 

meeting its objectives.  

• Bring a systematic disciplined approach to evaluate and report on the effectiveness of risk management, internal 

control and governance processes.  

• Highlight control weaknesses and required associated improvements together with corrective action recommended 

to management based on an acceptable and practicable timeframe. 

• Undertake follow up reviews to ensure management has implemented agreed internal control improvements within 

specified and agreed timeframes. 

• Report regularly to the Governance and Audit Committee to demonstrate the performance of the internal audit 

service. 

Authority 

The internal audit team is authorised to: 

• Have unrestricted access to all functions, records, property and personnel which it considers necessary to fulfil its 

function. 

• Have full and free access to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

• Allocate resources, set timeframes, define review areas, develop scopes of work and apply techniques to 

accomplish the overall internal audit objectives.  

• Obtain the required assistance from personnel within the organisation where audits will be performed, including 

other specialised services from within or outside the organisation. 

  

Pg 41



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 16 

The Head of Internal Audit and internal audit staff are not authorised to: 

• Perform any operational duties associated with the organisation. 

• Initiate or approve accounting transactions on behalf of the organisation. 

• Direct the activities of any employee not employed by RSM unless specifically seconded to internal audit. 

 

Reporting  

An assignment report will be issued following each internal audit assignment.  The report will be issued in draft for 

comment by management, and then issued as a final report to management, with the executive summary being 

provided to the Governance and Audit Committee.  The final report will contain an action plan agreed with 

management to address any weaknesses identified by internal audit.  

The internal audit service will issue progress reports to the Governance and Audit Committee and management 

summarising outcomes of audit activities, including follow up reviews.  

As your internal audit provider, the assignment opinions that RSM provides the organisation during the year are part of 

the framework of assurances that assist the Council in taking decisions and managing its risks. 

As the provider of the internal audit service we are required to provide an annual opinion on the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the organisation’s governance, risk management and control arrangements. In giving our opinion, it 

should be noted that assurance can never be absolute. The most that the internal audit service can provide to the 

Council is a reasonable assurance that there are no major weaknesses in risk management, governance and control 

processes. The annual opinion will be provided to the organisation by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP at the 

financial year end. The results of internal audit reviews, and the annual opinion, should be used by management and 

the Council to inform the organisation’s annual governance statement.  

For the purposes of our internal audit services to South Kesteven District Council, these are defined as: 

The Council refers to the Governance and Audit Committee which assumes responsibility for overseeing the work of 

internal audit.  

Senior management is defined as those responsible for the leadership and direction of the organisation.  

Data Protection 

Internal audit files need to include sufficient, reliable, relevant and useful evidence in order to support our findings and 

conclusions. Personal data is not shared with unauthorised persons unless there is a valid and lawful requirement to 

do so. We are authorised as providers of internal audit services to our clients (through the firm’s Terms of Business 

and our engagement letter) to have access to all necessary documentation from our clients needed to carry out our 

duties. 

Quality Assurance and Improvement 

As your external service provider of internal audit services, we have the responsibility for maintaining an effective 

internal audit activity.  Under the standards, internal audit services are required to have an external quality assessment 

every five years. In addition to this, we also have in place an internal quality assurance and improvement programme, 

led by a dedicated team who undertake these reviews.  This ensures continuous improvement of our internal audit 

services.  

Pg 42



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 17 

Any areas which we believe warrant bringing to your attention, which may have the potential to have an impact on the 

quality of the service we provide to you, will be raised in our progress reports to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

Fraud  

The Governance and Audit Committee recognises that management is responsible for controls to reasonably prevent 

and detect fraud. Furthermore, the Governance and Audit Committee recognises that internal audit is not responsible 

for identifying fraud; however internal audit will be aware of the risk of fraud when planning and undertaking any 

assignments.  

Approval of the Internal Audit Charter 

By approving this document, the internal audit strategy, the Governance and Audit Committee is also approving the 

internal audit charter. 

 

Pg 43



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Internal audit plan 2018/19 | 18 

APPENDIX D: OUR CLIENT CARE STANDARDS  

• Discussions with senior staff at the client take place to confirm the scope six weeks before the agreed audit start 

date 

• Key information such as the draft assignment planning sheet are issued by RSM to the key auditee four weeks 

before the agreed start date  

• The lead auditor to contact the client to confirm logistical arrangements two weeks before the agreed start date. 

• Fieldwork takes place on agreed dates with key issues flagged up immediately. 

• A debrief meeting will be held with audit sponsor at the end of fieldwork or within a reasonable time frame. 

• Two weeks after a debrief meeting a draft report will be issued by RSM to the agreed distribution list. 

• Management responses to the draft report should be submitted to RSM within two weeks. 

• Within three days of receipt of client responses the final report will be issued by RSM to the assignment sponsor 

and any other agreed recipients of the report. 

 

 

 

Pg 44



 

rsmuk.com 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject 
to its ethical and other professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-
standards-and-guidance. 
 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are 
not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. 
Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact.  This report, or our work, should not be 
taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We 
emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and our work should 
not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be relied upon to 
identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 
 
Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council and solely for the purposes set 
out herein. This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing 
to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any third party which 
obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of 
this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is 
caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 
 
This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save 
as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 
 
We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  
 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 
6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

 

 

Name: Chris Williams, Engagement Partner 

Email address: Chris.williams@rsmukk.com 

Telephone: 07753 584 993 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

Pg 45

http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance
http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance


External
Audit Plan 
2017/2018

South Kesteven
District Council
February 2018

Pg 46

Agenda Item 9



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

1

Summary for Governance and  
Audit Committee

Financial statements There are no significant changes to the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting (“the Code”) in 2017/18, which provides stability in terms of the 
accounting standards the Authority need to comply with.  Despite this, the 
deadline for the production and signing of the financial statements has been 
significantly advanced in comparison to year ended 31 March 2017. 

Whilst we recognise that the Authority successfully advanced its own draft 
accounts production timetable last year to align with the new deadlines, the 
approval of the Final Statements of Accounts remained at the September deadline 
in 2016/17. As a result we have recognised a significant risk in relation to this 
matter.

In order to meet the revised deadlines it will be essential that the draft financial 
statements and all prepared by client documentation is available in line with 
agreed timetables.  Where this is not achieved there is a significant likelihood that 
the audit report will not be issued by 31 July 2018.

Materiality 

Materiality for planning purposes has been set at £1.5 million.

We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than 
those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance and this has 
been set at £75,000.

Significant risks 

Those risks requiring specific audit attention and procedures to address the 
likelihood of a material financial statement error have been identified as:

– Valuation of PPE – Whilst the Authority operates a cyclical revaluation 
approach, the Code requires that all land and buildings be held at fair value.  We 
will consider the way in which the Authority ensures that assets not subject to 
in-year revaluation are not materially misstated;

– Pension Liabilities – The valuation of the Authority’s pension liability, as 
calculated by the Actuary, is dependent upon both the accuracy and 
completeness of the data provided and the assumptions adopted.  We will 
review the processes in place to ensure accuracy of data provided to the 
Actuary and consider the assumptions used in determining the valuation.

– Faster Close – As set out above, the timetable for the production of the 
financial statements has been significantly advanced with draft accounts having 
to be prepared by 31 May (2017: 30 June) and the final accounts signed by 31 
July (2017: 30 September).  We will work with the Authority in advance of our 
audit  to understand the steps being taken to meet these deadlines and the 
impact on our work.

Pg 47



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

2

Summary for Governance and 
Audit Committee (cont.)

Value for Money 
Arrangements work

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have  
identified the following VFM significant risk to date:

– Delivery of Budgets – As a result of reductions in central government funding, 
and other pressures, the Authority continues to face similar financial pressures 
and uncertainties to those experienced by others in the local government 
sector. At the same time the Authority is investing a significant level of funding 
to support its economic growth objectives and other strategic priorities. We 
will review the arrangements the  Authority has in place for ensuring its 
continuing financial resilience.

See pages 10 to 14 for more details

Logistics Our team is unchanged from the previous year and is lead by:

– John Cornett – Director

– Mike Norman – Manager

– Kerry Sharma – Assistant manager

More details are in Appendix 2.

Our work will be completed in four phases from December 2017 to July 2018 and 
our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and a Report to Those Charged With 
Governance, as outlined on page 17.

Our fee for the 2017/18 audit is £47,273 (£47,273 2016/2017) see page 16. This 
fee is in line with the scale fee published by PSAA

Acknowledgements We would like to take this opportunity to thank officers and Members for their 
continuing help and co-operation throughout our audit work.

Pg 48



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

3

Introduction

Background and Statutory responsibilities

This document supplements our Audit Fee Letter 2017/18 issued in April 2017, which also sets out details of 
our appointment by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA).

Our statutory responsibilities and powers are set out in the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the 
National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice and the PSAA Statement of Responsibilities.

Our audit has two key objectives, requiring us to audit/review and report on your:

01
Financial statements :
Providing an opinion on your accounts. We also review the Annual Governance Statement and 
Narrative Report and report by exception on these; and

02
Use of resources:
Concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
your use of resources (the value for money conclusion).

The audit planning process and risk assessment is an on-going process and the assessment and fees in this 
plan will be kept under review and updated if necessary.  Any change to our identified risks will be reporting 
to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

Financial Statements Audit

Our financial statements audit work follows a four stage audit process which is identified below. Appendix 1 
provides more detail on the activities that this includes. This report concentrates on the Financial Statements 
Audit Planning stage of the Financial Statements Audit.

Value for Money Arrangements Work

Our Value for Money (VFM) Arrangements Work follows a six stage process which is identified below. Page 10 
provides more detail on the activities that this includes. This report concentrates on explaining the VFM 
approach for 2017/18 and the findings of our VFM risk assessment.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

3

Financial 
Statements 

Audit 
Planning

Control
Evaluation

Substantive 
Procedures

Completion

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Risk 
Assessment

Linkages 
with other 
audit work

Identification 
of significant 

VFM risks VFM review 
work

(by ourselves 
or other 
bodies)

Conclude

Reporting

Pg 49



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

4

01

02

Financial statements audit planning
Financial Statements Audit Planning

Our planning work takes place during December 2017 to February 2018. This involves the following key 
aspects:

— Determining our materiality level;

— Risk assessment;

— Identification of significant risks;

— Consideration of potential fraud risks;

— Identification of key account balances in the financial statements and related assertions, estimates and 
disclosures;

— Consideration of management’s use or experts; and 

— Issuing this audit plan to communicate our audit strategy.

Risk assessment

Auditing standards require us to consider two standard risks for all organisations. We are not elaborating on 
these standard risks in this plan but consider them as a matter of course in our audit and will include any 
findings arising from our work in our ISA 260 Report.

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Management override of controls

Management is typically in a powerful position to perpetrate fraud owing to its ability to 
manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding 
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Our audit methodology incorporates 
the risk of management override as a default significant risk. In line with our methodology, we 
carry out appropriate controls testing and substantive procedures, including over journal entries, 
accounting estimates and significant transactions that are outside the normal course of 
business, or are otherwise unusual.

Fraudulent revenue recognition

We do not consider this to be a significant risk for local authorities as there are limited incentives and 
opportunities to manipulate the way income is recognised. We therefore rebut this risk and do not 
incorporate specific work into our audit plan in this area over and above our standard fraud 
procedures.

Pg 50



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

5

ProcessJudgment

ValuationDisclosure

Senior officer
Remuneration 

disclosures

Financial 
Instruments 
disclosures

Compliance to 
the Code’s 
disclosure 

requirements

Valuation
of PPE

Pension 
assets 

Revenue 
recognition

Management 
override of 

controls
Pension 
liability

Other 
provisions

Business 
Rates Bad 

Debt Provision

Accounting for 
leases

Key financial 
systems

Key: Significant risk Example other areas considered by our approach

Faster Close

Telling the 
Story

Budgetary 
controls

Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
The diagram below identifies significant risks, which we expand on overleaf. The diagram also identifies 
areas of audit focus and a range of other areas considered by our audit approach. Other areas of audit focus 
are risks with less likelihood of giving rise to a material error but which are nevertheless worthy of audit 
understanding. These include areas of judgement (for example provisions, particularly the Business Rates 
bad debt provision) and important disclosures (for example senior officer remuneration). 

Other areas of audit focus

Pg 51



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

6

Significant Audit Risks

Those risks requiring specific audit attention and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial 
statement error in relation to the Authority.

Valuation of PPE

The Code requires that where assets are subject to revaluation, their year end carrying value 
should reflect the appropriate fair value at that date.  The Authority has adopted a rolling 
revaluation model which sees all land and buildings revalued over a five year cycle.  As a 
result of this, however, individual assets may not be revalued for four years.

This creates a risk that the carrying value of those assets not revalued in year differs 
materially from the year end fair value.

Risk:

We will review the approach that the Authority has adopted to assess the risk that assets not 
subject to valuation are materially misstated and consider the robustness of that approach.  
We will also assess the risk of the valuation changing materially during the year.

In addition, we will consider movement in market indices between revaluation dates and the 
year end in order to determine whether these indicate that fair values have moved materially 
over that time.

In relation to those assets which have been revalued during the year we will assess the 
valuer’s qualifications, objectivity and independence to carry out such valuations and review 
the methodology used (including testing the underlying data and assumptions).

Approach:

Financial statements audit planning (cont.)

Pg 52



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

7

Pension Liabilities

The net pension liability represents a material element of the Authority’s balance sheet. The 
Authority is an admitted body of Lincolnshire Local Government Pension Fund, which had its 
last triennial valuation completed as at 31 March 2016. This forms an integral basis of the 
valuation as at 31 March 2018.

The valuation of the Local Government Pension Scheme relies on a number of assumptions, 
most notably around the actuarial assumptions, and actuarial methodology which results in 
the Authority’s overall valuation. 

There are financial assumptions and demographic assumptions used in the calculation of the 
Authority’s valuation, such as the discount rate, inflation rates, mortality rates etc. The 
assumptions should also reflect the profile of the Authority’s employees, and should be based 
on appropriate data. The basis of the assumptions is derived on a consistent basis year to 
year, or updated to reflect any changes.

There is a risk that the assumptions and methodology used in the valuation of the Authority’s 
pension obligation are not reasonable. This could have a material impact to net pension liability 
accounted for in the financial statements.

Significant Audit Risks (cont.)

Risk:

Financial statements audit planning (cont.)

As part of our work we will review the controls that the Authority has in place over the 
information sent directly to the Scheme Actuary. We will also liaise with the auditors of the 
Pension Fund in order to gain an understanding of the effectiveness of those controls 
operated by the Pension Fund. This will include consideration of the process and controls with 
respect to the assumptions used in the valuation. We will also evaluate the competency, 
objectivity and independence of Hymans Robertson the Scheme Actuary. 

We will review the appropriateness of the key assumptions included within the valuation, 
compare them to expected ranges, and consider the need to make use of a KPMG Actuary. 
We will review the methodology applied in the valuation by Hymans Robertson. 

In addition, we will review the overall Actuarial valuation and consider the disclosure 
implications in the financial statements. 

Approach:

Pg 53



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

8

Significant Audit Risks (cont.)

Financial statements audit planning (cont.)

Faster Close

In prior years, the Authority has been required to prepare draft financial statements by 30 
June and then final signed accounts by 30 September.  For years ending on and after 31 
March 2018 however, revised deadlines apply which require draft accounts by 31 May and 
final signed accounts by 31 July.

During 2016/17, the Authority started to prepare for these revised deadlines and advanced its 
own accounts production timetable so that draft accounts were ready by 31 May although the 
final signed accounts were not approved until 20th September. Whilst this was an 
advancement on the timetable applied in preceding years, further work is still required in order 
to ensure that the statutory deadlines for 2017/18 are met.

In order to meet the revised deadlines, the Authority may need to make greater use of 
accounting estimates. In doing so, consideration will need to be given to ensuring that these 
estimates remain valid at the point of finalising the financial statements.  In addition, there are 
a number of logistical challenges that will need to be managed.  These include:

— Ensuring that any third parties involved in the production of the accounts (including 
valuers and actuaries) are aware of the revised deadlines and have made arrangements to 
provide the output of their work in accordance with this;

— Revising the closedown and accounts production timetable in order to ensure that all 
working papers and other supporting documentation are available at the start of the audit 
process;

— Ensuring that the Governance and Audit Committee meeting schedules have been 
updated to permit signing in July; and

— Applying a shorter paper deadline to the July meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee meeting in order to accommodate the production of the final version of the 
accounts and our ISA 260 report.

In the event that the above areas are not effectively managed there is a significant risk that 
the audit will not be completed by the 31 July deadline.

There is also an increased likelihood that the Audit Certificate (which confirms that all audit 
work for the year has been completed) may be issued separately at a later date if work is still 
ongoing in relation to the Authority’s Whole of Government Accounts return.  This is not a 
matter of concern and is not seen as a breach of deadlines.

Risk:

We will continue to liaise with officers in preparation for our audit in order to understand the 
steps that the Authority is taking in order to ensure it meets the revised deadlines.  We will 
also look to advance audit work into the interim visit in order to streamline the year end audit 
work.

Where there is greater reliance upon accounting estimates we will consider the assumptions 
used and challenge the robustness of those estimates.

Approach:

Pg 54



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

9

Materiality

We are required to plan our audit to determine with reasonable confidence whether or not the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. An omission or misstatement is regarded as material if it 
would reasonably influence the user of financial statements. This therefore involves an assessment of the 
qualitative and quantitative nature of omissions and misstatements.

Generally, we would not consider differences in opinion in respect of areas of judgement to represent 
‘misstatements’ unless the application of that judgement results in a financial amount falling outside of a 
range which we consider to be acceptable.

For the Authority, materiality for planning purposes has been set at £1.5 million, which equates to around 
1.91% percent of gross expenditure. 

We design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision (.£1.125m).

Reporting to the Governance and Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to our opinion on the 
financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Governance and Audit Committee any 
unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified by our audit work.

Under ISA 260(UK&I) ‘Communication with those charged with governance’, we are obliged to report 
uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with 
governance. ISA 260 (UK&I) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken 
individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria.

In the context of the Authority, we propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be 
clearly trivial if it is less than £75,000.

If management has corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the audit, we will 
consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Governance and Audit Committee to 
assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Financial statements audit planning (cont.)

Authority Prior Year Gross Expenditure: £78.1m  (2016/17: £77.3m)

£1.125m £1.5m

Pg 55



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

10

VFM audit approach

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires auditors of local government bodies to be satisfied that 
the authority ‘has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 
of resources’.

This is supported by the Code of Audit Practice, published by the NAO in April 2015, which requires auditors 
to ‘take into account their knowledge of the relevant local sector as a whole, and the audited body 
specifically, to identify any risks that, in the auditor’s judgement, have the potential to cause the auditor to 
reach an inappropriate conclusion on the audited body’s arrangements.’

The VFM approach is fundamentally unchanged from that adopted in 2016/17 and the process is shown in 
the diagram below. The diagram overleaf shows the details of the sub-criteria for our VFM work.

Value for money arrangements work

VFM audit risk 
assessment

Financial 
statements and 
other audit work

Reassess risks throughout 
the audit.

Assessment of work by 
other review agencies

Specific local risk-based 
work

Continually re-assess 
potential VFM risks

Conclude on 
arrangements 
to secure VFM

VFM 
conclusion

No further work required subject to reassessment

2 3Identification of 
significant VFM risks 
(if any)1

Overall criterion

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions, worked with partners and third parties and deployed resources to achieve planned and 
sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

Pg 56



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

11

Informed decision making

Proper arrangements:

– Acting in the public interest, 
through demonstrating and 
applying the principles and 
values of sound governance.

– Understanding and using 
appropriate and reliable 
financial and performance 
information to support 
informed decision making 
and performance 
management.

– Reliable and timely financial 
reporting that supports the 
delivery of strategic 
priorities.

– Managing risks effectively 
and maintaining a sound 
system of internal control.

Sustainable 
resource deployment 

Proper arrangements:

– Planning finances effectively 
to support the sustainable 
delivery of strategic 
priorities and maintain 
statutory functions.

– Managing and utilising 
assets to support the 
delivery of strategic 
priorities. 

– Planning, organising and 
developing the workforce 
effectively to deliver 
strategic priorities.

Working with partners and 
third parties

Proper arrangements:

– Working with third parties 
effectively to deliver 
strategic priorities.

– Commissioning services 
effectively to support the 
delivery of strategic 
priorities.

– Procuring supplies and 
services effectively to 
support the delivery of 
strategic priorities.

Value for money arrangements work (cont.)

Value for Money sub-criterion

Pg 57



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

12

Value for money arrangements work (cont.)

Audit approach

We consider the relevance and 
significance of the potential 
business risks faced by all local 
authorities, and other risks that 
apply specifically to the Authority. 
These are the significant 
operational and financial risks in 
achieving statutory functions and 
objectives, which are relevant to 
auditors’ responsibilities under 
the Code of Audit Practice.

In doing so we consider:

– The Authority’s own 
assessment of the risks it 
faces, and its arrangements to 
manage and address its risks;

– Information from the Public 
Sector Auditor Appointments 
Limited VFM profile tool;

– Evidence gained from previous 
audit work, including the 
response to that work; and

– The work of other 
inspectorates and review 
agencies.

VFM audit 
risk assessment

Audit approach

There is a degree of overlap 
between the work we do as part 
of the VFM audit and our financial 
statements audit. For example, 
our financial statements audit 
includes an assessment and 
testing of the Authority’s 
organisational control 
environment, including the 
Authority’s financial management 
and governance arrangements, 
many aspects of which are 
relevant to our VFM audit 
responsibilities.

We have always sought to avoid 
duplication of audit effort by 
integrating our financial 
statements and VFM work, and 
this will continue. We will 
therefore draw upon relevant 
aspects of our financial 
statements audit work to inform 
the VFM audit. 

Linkages with financial 
statements and other

audit work

Audit approach

The Code identifies a matter as 
significant ‘if, in the auditor’s 
professional view, it is reasonable 
to conclude that the matter would 
be of interest to the audited body 
or the wider public. Significance 
has both qualitative and 
quantitative aspects.’

If we identify significant VFM 
risks, then we will highlight the 
risk to the Authority and consider 
the most appropriate audit 
response in each case, including:

— Considering the results of 
work by the Authority, 
inspectorates and other review 
agencies; and

— Carrying out local risk-based 
work to form a view on the 
adequacy of the Authority’s 
arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of 
resources.

Identification of
significant risks

VFM audit stage

Pg 58



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

13

Audit approach

Depending on the nature of the 
significant VFM risk identified, we 
may be able to draw on the work 
of other inspectorates, review 
agencies and other relevant 
bodies to provide us with the 
necessary evidence to reach our 
conclusion on the risk.

We will also consider the 
evidence obtained by way of our 
financial statements audit work 
and other work already 
undertaken.

If evidence from other 
inspectorates, agencies and 
bodies is not available and our 
other audit work is not sufficient, 
we will need to consider what 
additional work we will be 
required to undertake to satisfy 
ourselves that we have 
reasonable evidence to support 
the conclusion that we will draw. 
Such work may include:

– Additional meetings with 
senior managers across the 
Authority;

– Review of specific related 
minutes and internal reports;

– Examination of financial 
models for reasonableness, 
using our own experience and 
benchmarking data from 
within and without the sector.

Assessment of work by other 
review agencies, and

Delivery of local risk based 
work

Audit approach

At the conclusion of the VFM 
audit we will consider the results 
of the work undertaken and 
assess the assurance obtained 
against each of the VFM themes 
regarding the adequacy of the 
Authority’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of 
resources.

If any issues are identified that 
may be significant to this 
assessment, and in particular if 
there are issues that indicate we 
may need to consider qualifying 
our VFM conclusion, we will 
discuss these with management 
as soon as possible. Such issues 
will also be considered more 
widely as part of KPMG’s quality 
control processes, to help ensure 
the consistency of auditors’ 
decisions.

Concluding on VFM 
arrangements

Audit approach

We will report on the results of 
the VFM audit through our ISA 
260 Report. This will summarise 
any specific matters arising, and 
the basis for our overall 
conclusion.

The key output from the work will 
be the VFM conclusion (i.e. our 
opinion on the Authority’s 
arrangements for securing VFM), 
which forms part of our audit report. 

Reporting

Value for money arrangements work (cont.)

VFM audit stage

Pg 59



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

14

Value for money arrangements work (cont.)

Financial resilience

As a result of reductions in central government funding, and other pressures, the Authority 
continues to face similar financial pressures and uncertainties to those experienced by others 
in the local government sector. At the same time the Authority is investing a significant level 
of funding to support its economic growth objectives and other strategic priorities. The 
Authority needs to have effective arrangements in place for managing its annual budget, 
generating income and identifying and implementing any savings required to balance its 
medium term financial plan.

Risk:

As part of our additional risk based work, we will review the arrangements the  Authority has 
in place in these areas and for ensuring its continuing financial resilience. We will report our 
findings in our ISA260 Report.

Approach:

This risk is related to the following Value For Money sub-criterion

— Sustainable resource deployment.

VFM Sub-
criterion:

Significant VFM Risks

These are those risks requiring specific audit attention and procedures to address the likelihood that proper 
arrangements are not in place to deliver value for money. Our continuing risk assessment has identified the 
following matter at this stage. We will continue to update our assessment throughout the audit and report 
any additional matters to the Governance and Audit Committee in our ISA260 report. 

Pg 60



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

15

Whole of government accounts (WGA)

We are required to issue an assurance statement to the 
National Audit Office confirming the  income, expenditure, 
asset and liabilities of the Authority. Deadlines for 
completion of this for 2017/18 have not yet been confirmed.

Other matters

Elector challenge

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gives electors 
certain rights. These are:

— The right to inspect the accounts;

— The right to ask the auditor questions about the 
accounts; and

— The right to object to the accounts.

As a result of these rights, in particular the right to object to 
the accounts, we may need to undertake additional work to 
form our decision on the elector's objection. The additional 
work could range from a small piece of work where we 
interview an officer and review evidence to form our 
decision, to a more detailed piece of work, where we have 
to interview a range of officers, review significant amounts 
of evidence and seek legal representations on the issues 
raised. 

The costs incurred in responding to specific questions or 
objections raised by electors is not part of the fee. This 
work will be charged in accordance with the PSAA's fee 
scales.

Pg 61



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

16

Other matters

Reporting and communication 

Reporting is a key part of the audit process, not only in communicating the audit findings for the year, but 
also in ensuring the audit team are accountable to you in addressing the issues identified as part of the audit 
strategy. Throughout the year we will communicate with you through meetings with the finance team and 
the Governance and Audit Committee. Our communication outputs are included in Appendix 1.

Independence and Objectivity

Auditors are also required to be independent and objective. Appendix 3 provides more details of our 
confirmation of independence and objectivity.

Audit fee

Our Audit Fee Letter 2017/2018 presented to you in April 2017 first set out our fees for the 2017/2018 audit. 
This letter also set out our assumptions. We have not considered it necessary to seek approval for any 
changes to the agreed fees at this stage. 

Should there be a need to charge additional audit fees then this will be agreed with the s.151 Officer and 
PSAA. If such a variation is agreed, we will report that to you in due course. 

The planned audit fee for 2017/18 is £47,273, compared to 2016/2017 of £47,273.

Pg 62



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

17

Key elements of our financial statements audit 
approach

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Audit strategy 
and plan

ISA 260 (UK&I) 
Report

Annual Audit 
Letter

Initial planning 
meetings and risk 

assessment

Interim audit

Year end audit of 
financial statements 

and annual report

Sign audit opinion

Driving more value from the audit through data 
and analytics

Technology is embedded throughout our audit 
approach to deliver a high quality audit opinion. Use 
of Data and Analytics (D&A) to analyse large 
populations of transactions in order to identify key 
areas for our audit focus is just one element. Data 
and Analytics allows us to:

— Obtain greater understanding of your 
processes, to automatically extract control 
configurations and to obtain higher levels 
assurance.

— Focus manual procedures on key areas of risk 
and on transactional exceptions.

— Identify data patterns and the root cause of 
issues to increase forward-looking insight.

We anticipate using data and analytics in our work 
around key areas such as journals.

D&A
enabled

audit 
methodology

Communication

Continuous communication involving regular 
meetings between Governance and Audit 
Committee, Senior Management and audit team.

Appendix 1: 

Pg 63



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

18

Planning

— Determining our materiality level;

— Risk assessment;

— Identification of significant risks;

— Consideration of potential fraud risks;

— Identification of key account balances in the financial 
statements and related assertions, estimates and 
disclosures;

— Consideration of managements use or experts; and 

— Issuing this audit plan to communicate our audit strategy.

Control evaluation

— Understand accounting and reporting activities

— Evaluate design and implementation of selected controls

— Test operating effectiveness of selected controls

— Assess control risk and risk of the accounts being 
misstated

Substantive testing

— Plan substantive procedures

— Perform substantive procedures

— Consider if audit evidence is sufficient and appropriate

Completion

— Perform completion procedures

— Perform overall evaluation

— Form an audit opinion

— Governance and Audit Committee reporting

Audit workflow

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Appendix 1: 

Key elements of our financial statements audit 
approach (cont.)

Pg 64



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

19

Your audit team has been drawn from our specialist public sector assurance department. Our audit 
team were all part of the South Kesteven District Council audit last year. 

Audit team

John Cornett
Director

T: 0116 256 6064
E: john.cornett@kpmg.co.uk

Mike Norman
Manager

T: 0115 935 3544
E: michael.norman@kpmg.co.uk

Kerry Sharma
Assistant Manager

T: 0115 935 3652
E: kerry.sharma@kpmg.co.uk

‘My role is to lead our team 
and ensure the delivery of a 
high quality, valued added 
external audit opinion.
I will be the main point of 
contact for the Governance 
and Audit Committee and 
Chief Executive.’

‘I provide quality assurance for 
the audit work and specifically 
any technical accounting and 
risk areas. 
I will work closely with 
director to ensure we add 
value. 
I will liaise with the Director of 
Resources and other 
Executive Directors.’

‘I will be responsible for the 
on-site delivery of our work 
and will supervise the work of 
our audit assistants.’

Appendix 2: 

Pg 65



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

20

ASSESSMENT OF OUR OBJECTIVITY AND INDEPENDENCE AS AUDITOR OF SOUTH KESTEVEN 
DISTRICT COUNCIL

Professional ethical standards require us to provide to you at the planning stage of the audit a written 
disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit services) that bear on KPMG LLP’s objectivity 
and independence, the threats to KPMG LLP’s independence that these create, any safeguards that have 
been put in place and why they address such threats, together with any other information necessary to 
enable KPMG LLP’s objectivity and independence to be assessed. 

In considering issues of independence and objectivity we consider relevant professional, regulatory and legal 
requirements and guidance, including the provisions of the Code of Audit Practice, the provisions of Public 
Sector Audit Appointments Ltd’s (‘PSAA’s’) Terms of Appointment relating to independence and the 
requirements of the FRC Ethical Standard  and General Guidance Supporting Local Audit (Auditor General 
Guidance 1 – AGN01) issued by the National Audit Office (‘NAO’).

This Appendix is intended to comply with this requirement and facilitate a subsequent discussion with you 
on audit independence and addresses:

— General procedures to safeguard independence and objectivity;

— Independence and objectivity considerations relating to the provision of non-audit services; and

— Independence and objectivity considerations relating to other matters.

General procedures to safeguard independence and objectivity

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent.  As part of our ethics and 
independence policies, all KPMG LLP partners, Audit Directors and staff annually confirm their compliance 
with our ethics and independence policies and procedures. Our ethics and independence policies and 
procedures are fully consistent with the requirements of the FRC Ethical Standard.  As a result we have 
underlying safeguards in place to maintain independence through:

— Instilling professional values

— Communications

— Internal accountability

— Risk management

— Independent reviews.

We are satisfied that our general procedures support our independence and objectivity. 

Independence and objectivity requirements

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

Appendix 3: 

Pg 66



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

21

Independence and objectivity considerations relating to the provision of non-audit services 

Summary of fees

We have considered the fees charged by us to the authority and its affiliates for professional services 
provided by us during the reporting period. 

Facts and matters related to the provision of non-audit services and the safeguards put in place that bear 
upon our independence and objectivity, are set out in the following table 

Analysis of Non-audit services for the year ended 31 March 2018

Appropriate approvals have been obtained from PSAA for all non-audit services above the relevant thresholds 
provided by us during the reporting period. In addition, we monitor our fees to ensure that we comply with 
the 70% non-audit fee cap set by the NAO.

Independence and objectivity requirements 
(cont.)

Appendix 3: 

Description of 
scope of services

Principal threats 
to independence

Safeguards Applied Basis of fee Value of 
Services 
Delivered in the 
year ended 31 
March 2018

£

2016/17 Housing 
Capital Pooling 
Return

Self-interest

Self-review

Management 

threat

Familiarity

Advocacy

This engagement is entirely separate 
from the audit and there is a separate 
engagement letter in place.

The nature of this work is to certify the 
Pooling of Housing Receipts in 
accordance with the specific assurance 
instructions set out by DCLG in CFB06. 
It does not impact on our opinion and 
we do not consider that the outcome of 
this work will be a threat to our role as 
external auditors.

This work is undertaken in accordance 
with the Assurance Instruction CFB06 
provided by DCLG.

This threat is limited given the scale, 
nature and timing of the work.

We do not act as advocates for the 
Authority in any aspect of this work. We 
report our findings directly to DCLG.

Fixed Cost 3,000

Pg 67



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

22

Independence and objectivity considerations relating to other matters  

There are no other matters that, in our professional judgment, bear on our independence which need to be 
disclosed to the Governance and Audit Committee.

Confirmation of audit independence

We confirm that as of the date of this report, in our professional judgment, KPMG LLP is independent within 
the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and the objectivity of the Audit Director and audit 
staff is not impaired. 

This report is intended solely for the information of the Audit Committee of the authority and should not be 
used for any other purposes.

We would be very happy to discuss the matters identified above (or any other matters relating to our 
objectivity and independence) should you wish to do so.

John Cornett

KPMG LLP

Independence and objectivity requirements 
(cont.)

Appendix 3: 

Pg 68



Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We 
take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties. We 
draw your attention to the Statement of Responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies, which is 
available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place 
proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the law and 
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are 
dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact John Cornett, the 
engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with 
your response please contact the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s work under our contract with 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers, by email to Andrew.Sayers@kpmg.co.uk. 
After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s 
complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by 
writing to Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith 
Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of 
independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International. 

CREATE: CRT086281A

kpmg.com/uk

Pg 69



 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Internal Audit Progress Report 

Governance and Audit Committee 

22 March 2018 
 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed.  
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no  
responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 

 

Page 1 of 12

Pg 70

Agenda Item 10

anitaeckersley
Text Box
     APPENDIX  10a



     

 

South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

 

 

CONTENTS 
1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2 Reports considered at this Governance and Audit Committee .................................................................................... 3 

3 Looking Ahead ............................................................................................................................................................. 5 

4 Other Matters ............................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Appendix A: Internal Audit assignments completed to date .............................................................................................. 7 

For further information contact .......................................................................................................................................... 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its ethical 
and other professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance. 
 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily 
a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. 
 
Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented. This report, or 
our work, should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. 
We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be 
relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should our work be relied upon to identify all 
circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 
 
This report is supplied on the understanding that it is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the purposes 
set out herein. Our work has been undertaken solely to prepare this report and state those matters that we have agreed to state to 
them. This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any 
rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the Council which obtains 
access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other 
party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on 
representations in this report.  
 
This report is released to our Client on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as 
otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent.  
 
We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  
 

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 

Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB.

Page 2 of 12

Pg 71



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

1 INTRODUCTION 

The internal audit plan 2017/18 was approved by Governance and Audit Committee on 21 March 2017 and included a 

total of 20 planned reviews. 

This report provides a summary update on progress against that plan and summarises the results of our work to date. 

Please see chart below for progress against the plan. 

 

   

 

72% 22% 6%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

1

Assignments Complete Assignments in Progress Assignments Not Yet Due

Page 3 of 12

Pg 72



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

2 REPORTS CONSIDERED AT THIS GOVERNANCE 
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

This table informs of the audit assignments that have been completed since the last Governance and Audit 

Committee. 

The Executive Summary and Key Findings of the assignments below are attached to this progress report. 

Assignment Status Opinion issued 
Actions agreed 

H M L 

Refuse Collection: Missed Bins Final 

 

0 0 0 

Follow Up 3 * Final Good Progress 0 0 3 

 
 
* The Follow Up 3 report will be presented to the Governance and Audit Committee separately. 

Page 4 of 12

Pg 73



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

2.1 Impact of findings to date 

 

 

Refuse Collection: Missed Bins 

Conclusion: Substantial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

The controls identified to be in place were considered to be adequately designed, and testing found 
that they were being correctly applied, as a consequence, no findings were identified that required 
management attention.  

 

Page 5 of 12

Pg 74



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

3 LOOKING AHEAD 

Assignment area Planned 
commencement date 

Status 

GDPR Q4 In Progress 

Health and Safety Q2 In Progress 

Contractor Review * Q4 In Progress 

Right to Buy * Q4 In Progress 

Corporate Governance Q3 Scheduled 26/03/2018 

 

* additional reviews requested by management – see details in section 4.1 (Changes to the audit plan). 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 12

Pg 75



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

4 OTHER MATTERS 

4.1 Changes to the audit plan 

Following discussion with management it has been agreed to remove the four continuous assurance reviews from the 

Internal Audit plan and allocate the days to contingency. 

At the request of management, three advisory reviews have been included in the audit plan for 2017/18 and these are: 

Housing Benefits Overpayments, Complaints and Freedom of Information and Purchasing Cards. The final reports 

have been issued to management for these advisory reviews.  

As discussed at the previous Governance and Audit Committee meeting, we have recently completed a review of 

Refuse Collection: Missed Bins and the results of the review are included in this report. 

Recruitment and Retention, Homelessness and IT Software Development Lifecycle audits have been deferred at the 

request of management.   

 

Recruitment and Retention is being deferred due to the implementation of a new Payroll and HR System which will be 

introduced into the organisation by May 2018. Further, one of the team of two officers who are responsible for 

recruitment and selection will be on maternity leave and the other is heavily involved in the transfer of the old Payroll 

and HR system to the new. 

 

Homelessness is being deferred as the existing service provision is undergoing change with the introduction of the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 2017. A later review will allow management to evaluate its systems and processes in 

line with the Act. 

IT – Software Development Lifecycle has been removed from the plan due to this now being managed by IT as 

opposed to a Project Team. 

Since the previous Governance and Audit Committee meeting, management requested two additional reviews: Right to 

Buy and a Contractor advisory review. These reviews are currently in progress. 

 

 

 

  

Page 7 of 12

Pg 76



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

APPENDIX A: INTERNAL AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS 
COMPLETED TO DATE 

Report previously seen by the Governance and Risk Committee and included for information purposes only: 

Assignment Status Opinion issued 
Actions agreed 

H M L 

Asset Management Plan (HRA) 
(2.17/18) 

Final 

 

0 2 1 

Follow Up 1 (3.17/18) Final  Reasonable progress 0 2 0 

Business Continuity (4.17/18) Final 

 

0 4 1 

Cyber Security (5.17/18) * Final 

 

 0  4  5 

Housing Benefit (6.17/18) Final 

 

 0  2 1 

Payroll and Expenses (7.17/18) Final 

 

 0  2  0 

Risk Management (9.17/18) Final 

 

 0   1  1 

 
Follow Up 2 (11.17/18)  
 

Final Good Progress  0  1  0 

Page 8 of 12

Pg 77



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 

chris.williams@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07753 584 993 

 

Amjad Ali, Senior Manager 

amjad.ali@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07800 617 139 

 

Address: 

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 

Suite A, 7th Floor 

City Gate East 

Tollhouse Hill 

Nottingham NG1 5FS 

Phone: 0115 964 4450 

 

Page 9 of 12

Pg 78



 

  South Kesteven District Council Refuse Collection: Missed Bins 13.17/18 

1.1 Background  

We carried out an audit to confirm the accuracy of the calculations made when monitoring and reporting the 

performance of Key Performance Indicator (KPI) OP511 ‘Number of Missed Bins per 100,000 collected'. This 

particular review was requested by Members and is additional to the agreed internal audit plan for 2017/18. 

The KPI for missed bins is monitored and reported in the performance monitoring system and is allocated reference 

number OP 511. A clear definition of the 'Number of Missed Bins per 100,000 collected' is held in the performance 

management system and the definition is available for staff to view as necessary. The definition reads:  

''A missed bin is a collection reported as missed by a resident. This only includes those which have not been reported 

by the crew, using the in-cab computer; as being left uncollected for a specific reason e.g. contamination. The 

indicator is calculated as those missed per 100,000 collections made, to provide a comparable figure year on year, 

taking into account fluctuations in the number of bins that could be collected. The data is calculated using the number 

of Service Requests (to re-visit the address and collect the bin) raised by Customer Services, following investigation 

and verification that the report received from the customer, represents a genuine missed bin''. The definition includes a 

worked example of how to calculate the KPI. 

The KPIs to be monitored are reviewed annually and are agreed by the Assistant Director at the start of each financial 

year. The target number for missed bins is currently ''less than 120 per month''. This figure is also agreed annually 

between Performance Management and the Assistant Director Environment and approved by the Strategic Director. 

Prior to April 2015, the target was ''less than 174 per month''. The 'Missed bins per 100,000 collected’ performance 

indicator is an operational performance indicator and is only published internally. 

We obtained and reviewed the working papers for all of the KPI calculations completed since April 2017. Our testing 

confirmed that the calculations were all in accordance with the specified formula and that the correct figures were used 

e.g. correct number of domestic properties; correct number of collections per week and correct number of weeks in 

each month. We confirmed that there are 63,233 domestic properties within the Council’s area, all of which are entitled 

to a fortnightly alternating collection of refuse and recyclable materials, plus an optional service for the collection of 

green waste. Currently, the number of missed bins per 100,000 collected is an average of 74.02 per month. This is not 

a published KPI therefore it is difficult to benchmark this performance with other waste collection authorities. 

1.2 Conclusion 

Our review of the calculation methodology for KPI OP511 'Number of Missed Bins per 100,000 collected'; confirmed 

that the data used to calculate the KPI is verified and accurately reflects the actual number of missed bins each month. 

The actual number of collections per month is also checked and verified before being used in the calculation. We have 

not raised any management actions as a result of this audit. 

Internal audit opinion: 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 

take substantial assurance that the controls upon which 

the organisation relies to manage the identified area are 

suitably designed, consistently applied and operating 

effectively. 
 

 

REFUSE COLLECTION: MISSED BINS - EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY 

Page 10 of 12

Pg 79



 

  South Kesteven District Council Refuse Collection: Missed Bins 13.17/18 

1.3 Key findings 

The key findings from this review are as follows: 

• A standard definition for the KPI is established. Full details including how the performance indicator is to be 

calculated is documented and this is made available to relevant staff; 

• Refuse and Recycling Policies are in place and are maintained up to date. They specify how refuse will be 

collected by the Council and detail the responsibilities of residents to present bins for collection. Policy 5 

specifies the procedure to be followed regarding 'missed bins'; 

• Compilation of the missed bins data is carried out monthly based on the verified actual number of missed bins. 

The calculation is carried out manually and follows the defined formula. The actual number of domestic 

properties is obtained every April from Council Tax records and the same number is used for calculating the 

KPI for the whole year. The performance data is calculated as a percentage for the current month and as an 

average percentage for year to date; 

• The refuse collection vehicles are fitted with an in-cab computer system. This enables the vehicle to be 

constantly tracked using GPS positioning and is linked to a camera system and keypad with wi-fi connection. 

The driver records information directly into the computer system. This identifies those properties which have 

not had a bin collected or if a bin was not present at time of collection. The data recorded, in addition to the bin 

not being out, includes contaminated bin, side waste, bin overflowing, bin empty, animal waste and bin 

overweight. The property reference number, from the Council Tax system, enables clear identification of any 

property where a bin has not been collected and identifies the reason why; 

• The Council's Customer Relationship Management system is updated directly from the in-cab computer and 

holds, for each property, details of any bins reported by the crew as not being collected and the reason why. 

The details held in the Customer Relationship Management system can be viewed by Street Care Services 

and also by Customer Services when responding to customer complaints; 

• All complaints regarding missed bins are received in the Customer Service Centre. The Customer Services 

Officer can access the missed bins data held in the Customer Relationship Management system and can also 

see the collection records recorded by the in-cab computer. The Customer Services Officers are provided with 

a pre-prepared script which they work through with the complainant. This enables them to present the 

evidence available from the in-cab computer relevant to the complainant and to determine if the missed bin is 

genuine or if it is the result of the complainant not following the rules; 

• When a complaint regarding a missed bin is adjudged to be genuine, a works order ticket is raised. This 

instructs the crew to return to the location and to collect the bin. These are the verified missed bins that are 

recorded in the KPI; 

• A report is obtained detailing the number of works order tickets generated in respect of missed bins. This 

reflects the actual number of verified missed bins and is the figure that is used when calculating the Missed 

Bins KPI; 

• Bins not collected because of contamination have a sticker attached informing the resident that the 

contamination must be removed before the bin will be collected; Green waste bins are checked to ensure that 

the correct sticker, confirming that the service has been paid for, is present before the bin is emptied. When 

bins are not collected because of these reasons, the in-cab computer is updated to record the reasons for not 

collecting the bin; and 

• KPI outcomes are reported internally on the monitoring dashboard that is available to the Service Manager, 

Assistant Directors and Strategic Directors. This is viewed on-line and a formal paper based report is not 

produced. The electronic version of the dashboard is used at performance review meetings and at one to ones 

with the Service Manager. A Red Amber Green traffic light system is used to identify those indicators where 

performance is satisfactory, deteriorating or adverse. 

Page 11 of 12

Pg 80



 

  South Kesteven District Council Refuse Collection: Missed Bins 13.17/18 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 

The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 

lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 

reviewed in this area. 

Area Control 

design not 

effective* 

Non 

Compliance 

with controls* 

Agreed management actions 

Low Medium High 

Accuracy of data collection, validation and 

reporting processes in relation to Refuse 

Collection KPI's. 

0 (11) 0 (11) 0 0 0 

Total  

 

0 0 0 

Page 12 of 12

Pg 81



 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL  

Follow Up 3 

FINAL  

Internal audit follow up report: 14.17/18  

27 February 2018 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no 

responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 

Pg 82

anitaeckersley_1
Text Box
     APPENDIX 10b



     

 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 3  14.17/18 | 1 

CONTENTS 
1 Executive summary ...................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2 Findings and management actions .............................................................................................................................. 5 

Appendix A: Scope ............................................................................................................................................................ 8 

Appendix B: Actions completed ......................................................................................................................................... 9 

For further information contact ........................................................................................................................................ 11 

 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its ethical and other 
professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Management actions raised for improvements 
should be assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented. This report, or our work, should not be taken as a substitute for 
management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of 
internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither 
should our work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any 
purpose or in any context. Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its 
own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to 
any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on 
representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by 
agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon 
Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

Debrief held 9 February 2018 Internal audit team Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 

Robert Barnett, Director 

Amjad Ali, Senior Manager  

Iain Daire, Assistant Manager  

Kishan Patel, Lead Auditor  

Draft report issued 22 February 2018 

Responses received 27 February 2018 

Final report issued 27 February 2018 Client sponsor Richard Wyles, Assistant Director  

Finance 

Tracey Elliott, Governance and  

Risk Officer 

Distribution Richard Wyles, Assistant Director  

Finance 

Tracey Elliott, Governance and  

Risk Officer 

Pg 83

http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance


 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 3  14.17/18 | 2 

1.1 Introduction 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2017/2018 we have undertaken a review to follow up progress 

made by the Council to implement the previously agreed management actions. The audits considered as part of the 

follow up review were: 

• Allocations and Lettings 

• Follow Up 1 

• Business Continuity Planning 

• Housing Benefit 

• Payroll and Expenses 

• Risk Management 

• Follow Up 2 

The 16 management actions considered in this review comprised of 10 medium and six low actions. Concentrating on 

the actions classified as medium, the focus of this review was to provide assurance that all actions previously made 

have been adequately implemented. For actions categorised as low we have accepted management's assurance 

regarding their implementation.  

1.2 Conclusion 

Taking account of the issues identified in the remainder of the report, and in line with our definitions set out in 

Appendix A, in our opinion the Council has demonstrated good progress in implementing agreed management 

actions. 

We have reiterated management actions where these have not yet been implemented. In addition we have made new 

management actions where appropriate; these are detailed in section two of this report. 

The following graph highlights the progress made on the actions that have been followed up. 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Pg 84



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 3 14.17/18   | 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 1 2 3 4 5

11.17/18 Follow Up 2

09.17/18 Risk Management

07.17/18 Payroll and Expenses

06.17/18 Housing Benefit

04.17/18 Business Continuity Planning

03.17/18 Follow Up 1

15.16/17 Allocations and Lettings

Implemented (Incl Superseded)

Not implemented

In progress

Not due

Pg 85



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 3 14.17/18   | 4 

1.3  Progress on actions  

Implementation 

status by review 

Number of 

actions 

agreed 

Status of management actions   

Implemented 

(1) 

Implementation 

ongoing 

(2) 

Not 

implemented 

(3) 

Superseded 

(4) 

Not yet 

due (5) 

Confirmed as 

completed or 

no longer 

necessary 

(1)+(4) 

Allocations and 

Lettings 
1 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Follow Up 1 2 1 1 0 0 0 1 

Business 

Continuity 

Planning 

5 4 1 0 0 0 4 

Housing Benefit 3 3 0 0 0 0 3 

Payroll and 

Expenses 
2 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Risk Management 2 1 1 0 0 0 1 

Follow Up 2 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Implementation 

status by 

management 

action priority 

Number of 

actions 

agreed 

Status of management actions   

Implemented 

(1) 

Implementation 

ongoing 

(2) 

Not 

implemented 

(3) 

Superseded 

(4) 

Not yet 

due (5) 

Confirmed as 

completed or 

no longer 

necessary 

(1)+(4) 

Low 6 4 2 0 0 0 4 

Medium 10 9 1 0 0 0 9 

Totals 
16 (100%) 13 (81%) 3 (19%) 0 (0%) 0 (0%) 0 (0%) 13 (81%) 

Pg 86



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 3 14.17/18   | 5 

2 FINDINGS AND MANAGEMENT ACTIONS 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included only those actions graded as 2 and 3. Each action followed up has been categorised in line with 

the following: 

Status Detail 

1 The entire action has been fully implemented. 

2 The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

3 The action has not been implemented. 

4 The action has been superseded and is no longer applicable. 

5 The action is not yet due. 

 

Follow Up 1 

Ref Management action Original  

date 

Original 

priority  

 Audit finding Current 

status 

Updated 

management 

action 

Priority 

issued 

Revised  

date 

Owner responsible 

1 We will continue to 

develop procedural 

guidance detailing the 

correct approach to the 

treatment of retrospective 

purchase orders and non-

purchase order 

processed invoices.   

This will then be 

communicated to all 

Service Managers and 

staff who procure goods. 

31 October 

2017 

Low  Through discussion with the 

Management Accountant it 

was established that the 

formulation of procedural 

guidance is on-going. 

A document is currently 

being compiled which will 

detail the approach for 

dealing with retrospective 

purchase orders and non-

purchase order processed 

invoices.    

In order to minimise the 

number of retrospective 

purchase orders being 

raised on a monthly basis 

emails are sent to all budget 

holders summarising the 

total level of retrospective 

     2 We will ensure 

procedure notes 

have been 

developed to detail 

the approach when 

dealing with 

retrospective 

purchase orders and 

non-purchase order 

processed invoices.  

The procedure notes 

will be disseminated 

to all Service 

Managers and staff 

involved in the 

process. 

Low 31 May 

2018 

Finance Team 

Leaders 

P
g 87



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 3 14.17/18   | 6 

invoices and non-purchase 

orders which have been 

processed. This is then 

discussed at quarterly 

budget holder meetings to 

ensure the amount is kept to 

a minimum. 

Business Continuity Planning 

Ref Management action Original  

date 

Original 

priority  

 Audit finding Current 

status 

Updated 

management 

action 

Priority 

issued 

Revised  

date 

Owner responsible 

2 Evidence will be 

maintained by service 

areas in future on when 

the Business Continuity 

Plans and arrangements 

at the Council have been 

communicated to them.    

Additionally, Business 

Continuity awareness will 

be included in the staff 

induction process. 

31 

December 

2017 

Medium  All Service Managers within 

the Council are required to 

sign an Assurance 

Statement on a quarterly 

basis. The template for 

Assurance Statements has 

been amended to include a 

statement to ensure that 

staff members have been 

made of aware of the 

relevant Business Continuity 

Plans and arrangements for 

their service area.     

All new staff within the 

Council are required to 

undertake a Corporate 

Induction and Service 

Induction. The Service 

Induction Document is 

currently being amended to 

include awareness of the 

relevant Business Continuity 

Plans and arrangements for 

the individual service area. 

 

     2 The Service 

Induction Document 

will be amended to 

include awareness 

of the relevant 

Business Continuity 

Plans and 

arrangements for the 

individual service 

area. 

Low 28 

February 

2018 

Business Manager 

Neighbourhoods & 

Emergency Planning 

Officer 

P
g 88



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 3 14.17/18   | 7 

Risk Management 

Ref Management action Original  

date 

Original 

priority  

 Audit finding Current 

status 

Updated 

management 

action 

Priority 

issued 

Revised  

date 

Owner responsible 

3 A training and 

development programme 

will be developed and 

provided to all Officers 

with responsibility for risk. 

31 January 

2018 

Low  The Governance and Risk 

Officer informed that 

discussions are currently on-

going with other local 

authorities to determine how 

they are undertaking their 

risk management training 

programs.  

A discussion will take place 

with the HR department to 

determine the best method 

on how to incorporate risk 

management training into 

the corporate training 

programme. 

     2 A service risk review 

exercise is planned 

for March 2018 and 

managers will be 

provided with one-to-

one guidance if 

required as part of 

this review.   

Risk management 

training will also be 

included within the 

corporate training 

programme which 

HR are developing. 

Low 30 June 

2018 

Governance and 

Risk Officer 

P
g 89



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 3 14.17/18   | 8 

Scope of the review 

The internal audit assignment has been scoped to provide assurance on how South Kesteven District Council 

manages the following objective:   

Objective of the area under review 

To ensure that progress with implementing agreed recommendations / management actions is satisfactory in the 

context of ensuring that there is no significant risk to the Council being able to meet its strategic aims. 

 

When planning the audit, the following areas for consideration and limitations were agreed: 

Areas for consideration: 

• 15.16/17 Allocations and Lettings;  

• 03.17/18 Follow Up 1; 

• 04.17/18 Business Continuity Planning; 

• 06.17/18 Housing Benefit; 

• 07.17/18 Payroll and Expenses; 

• 09.17/18 Risk Management; and 

• 11.17/18 Follow Up 2. 

 

Limitations to the scope of the audit assignment:  

• The follow up will only cover all recommendations and actions made in the identified reports. 

• We will not review the whole control framework of the areas listed above. Therefore, we are not providing assurance 

on the entire risk and control framework of these areas. 

• Where testing has been undertaken, our samples have been selected over the period since actions were 

implemented or controls enhanced. 

• Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist. 

APPENDIX A: SCOPE 

Pg 90



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 3 14.17/18   | 9 

From the testing conducted during this review we have found the following actions to have been fully implemented and 

are now closed: 

Assignment title Management actions 

Allocations and Lettings Mutual exchanges will be approved prior to the exchange taking 

place.  The approval will be recorded and kept on file.   Home 

visit paperwork will be signed by tenants and visiting officers and 

kept on file. 

Follow Up 1 The existing procedure note for the handling and banking of cash 

within Building Control will be further developed and reviewed by 

the Building Control Manager to ensure it is fit for purpose. 

Business Continuity Planning The Business Continuity Management Strategy 2017-2021 will 

be published on the Council's intranet to ensure that it is made 

available to staff.    Additionally, awareness of the business area 

Business Continuity Plans will be raised at team meetings. 

Business Continuity Planning Going forward all Business Impact Analysis and the resulting 

Business Continuity Plans will be subject to review and approval 

by the Executive Manager. The Business Impact Analysis and 

the Business Continuity Plans will be signed and dated by the 

Executive Manager to evidence this review and approval. 

Business Continuity Planning a) The Impact Scores will be checked for accuracy.  b) Adequate 

control measures and corrective actions will be identified on the 

risk analysis.  c) Where risk assessments are not required to be 

undertaken, the reason will be documented on the Business 

Impact Analysis. 

Business Continuity Planning The business area Business Continuity Plans will be tested by 

the departments in a simulated environment/as a desk top 

exercise and the results will be documented and will be analysed 

in order to identify weaknesses in the process and ensure 

lessons are learned identified and actioned. 

Housing Benefit An annual review will be undertaken to confirm the access list to 

the housing benefits system only contains current staff members. 

Housing Benefit An annual review will be undertaken to ensure all declarations of 

interest are returned by staff and maintained on file. 

APPENDIX B: ACTIONS COMPLETED 

Pg 91



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 3 14.17/18   | 10 

Housing Benefit All BACS payments will be submitted and checked by 

independent members of staff and in all instances the reviews 

will be signed and dated. 

Payroll and Expenses We will ensure that there is segregation of duties in the 

processing and checking of the payroll reports and the review of 

the payroll reports. 

Payroll and Expenses Staff members involved in the processing, checking, reviewing 

the payroll, transmitting the payroll; and checking the 

transmission reports, will be reminded to ensure that all reports 

are signed and dated to confirm the checking and review of the 

reports.  Historically it was not a requirement to sign d) and e). 

Risk Management Mandatory attendance at Risk Management Group (RMG) 

meetings will be communicated to Service Managers and/or 

representatives from each service area.   Attendance at RMG 

meetings will be monitored going forward to ensure that all 

service areas are represented at meetings. 

Follow Up 2 Full test of failover to the Disaster Recovery site will be 

performed in 2017.  Minimum disaster recovery test frequency 

will be documented within the IT Disaster Recovery Plan. 

 

Pg 92



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 3 14.17/18   | 11 

 

Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 

Chris.Williams@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 0115 964 4450  

 

Robert Barnett, Director 

Robert.Barnett@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 0115 964 4450  

 

Amjad Ali, Senior Manager 

Amjad.Ali@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07800 617139 

 

Iain Daire, Assistant Manager 

Iain.Daire@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07528 970048 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

Pg 93

mailto:Chris.Williams@rsmuk.com
mailto:Robert.Barnett@rsmuk.com
mailto:Amjad.Ali@rsmuk.com
mailto:Iain.Daire@rsmuk.com


GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

22 March 2018

Statement of Accounting Policies 2017/18 (CFM 455)

Decision
Proposal:

 Decision of the Governance and Audit Committee

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Adam Stokes – Finance 

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Richard Wyles, Assistant Director – Finance
Tel: 01476 406210
Email: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 01 March 2018

Alison Hall-Wright, Financial Accountant Team Leaders
Tel: 01476 406208
Email: Alison.Hall-Wright@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 01 March 2018

Debbie Mogg, Interim Director of Resources
Tel: 01476 406301
Email: debbie.mogg@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 8 March 2018 

Councillor Adam Stokes 
Date: 9 March 2018 

SUMMARY

The Council’s Accounting Policies are reviewed annually, prior to the preparation of the 
Statement of Accounts, to ensure that they are up to date and in line with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (The Code).

When changes are made to the policies, it is a requirement that these are reported to 
those charged with governance.

Pg 94

Agenda Item 11

mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:Alison.Hall-Wright@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.mogg@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that Governance & Audit Committee approves the Statement of 
Accounting Policies, as set out at the Appendix A to this report to be used in the 
production of the 2017/18 financial statements.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT;

1.1 The 2017/18 Statement of Accounts will summarise the Council’s transactions 
for the 2017/18 financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2017.  
It will be prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017-18 (The Code) which is based on 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting convention 
adopted is historical cost modified by the revaluation of certain categories of 
non-current assets.

1.2 All other accounting policies have been reviewed for the 2017/18 financial year 
to ensure that they comply with The Code, to ensure they accurately reflect the 
transactions that have occurred and that they have been applied consistently.

1.3 Appendix A details the accounting policies to be applied in the preparation of 
the Statement of Accounts 2017/18.

1.4 The accounting policies have been amended to include the policy for Interests 
in Companies and Other Entities due to Gravitas Housing Ltd being a wholly 
owned subsidiary of the Council.  This is referenced at item XIII at Appendix A.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

None

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
Failure to meet statutory 
deadline and/or qualification 
of statement of accounts

The actions to mitigate these risks 
are detailed in the report

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

Not Applicable

Pg 95



6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

Not Applicable

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Prior to the compilation of the statement of accounts for 2017/18 it is important 
that members of Governance and Audit Committee have the opportunity to 
discuss and comment on the accounting policies to be used in the production of 
the financial statements.  These policies if agreed, will be applied to the 
treatment of all transactions that make up the figures in the Statement of 
Accounts to ensure that the accounts present a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the Council at the balance sheet date and of its income and 
expenditure for the financial year.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Local authorities are required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to 
prepare a statement of accounts in accordance with relevant regulations. The 
policies referred to are a requirement of the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2015.  Any updates and amendments should be reported to 
Governance and Audit Committee in accordance with its role to approve the 
Statement of Accounting Policies. 

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

Not Applicable

10. APPENDICES

A. Draft Statement of Accounting Policies

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Pg 96



Appendix A

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
I. GENERAL PRINCIPLES

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2017/18 financial 
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2018.  The Council is required to prepare an 
annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which those 
regulations require to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These 
practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2017/18 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2017/18, supported by 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
instruments.

II. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received. In particular:

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure 
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as 
inventories on the Balance Sheet.

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made.

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the 
relevant financial instrument, rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the 
contract.

 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

III. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments 
that mature in 30 days or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

Pg 97



In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management.

IV. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES & 
ESTIMATES AND ERRORS

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct 
a material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e.  in the 
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period 
adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices 
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, 
other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance.  
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting, 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had 
always been applied.  

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

V. CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year.

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.
 Revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the loss can be written 
off.

 Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisation.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution 
from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount 
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory 
guidance.  Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore 
replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction 
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference 
between the two.

VI. COUNCIL TAX AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf 
of major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as, principals, collecting council tax 
and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund 
(i.e. the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council 
tax and NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major 
preceptors and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the 
amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted.

Pg 98



Accounting for Council TAX and NDR

The council tax and NDR included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
is the council’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the 
amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the Council’s General Fund. 
Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General 
Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet includes the council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of 
council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, 
overpayments and prepayments and appeals.

VII.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Benefits Payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. 
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, 
bonuses and non monetary benefits for current employees and are recognised as an expense 
for services in the year in which the employees render service to the Council. An accrual is 
made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by 
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next 
financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following 
accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is 
charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday ansences are charged to revenue in the 
financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits: 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate 
an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept 
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.  They are charged on an accruals basis 
to the appropriate service, or where applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council can no 
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the council recognises costs for a 
restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require 
the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the 
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant 
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to 
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension 
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end

Post-Employment Benefits 

Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Fund, administered 
by Lincolnshire County Council.  The scheme provides defined benefits to members 
(retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.  

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the revenue account when 
employees earn them, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.

Pg 99



Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme:

 The liabilities of the Lincolnshire County Council pension scheme attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation  to 
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality 
rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projected earnings for current employees. 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate calculated 
by the Actuaries (based on the indicative rate of return on the Bond yields and inflation 
rates).

 The assets of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are 
included in the balance sheet at their fair value:

- Quoted securities – current bid price
- Unquoted securities – professional estimate
- Unitised securities – current bid price
- Property - market value

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
 Service Cost comprising:

- Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned 
this year –  allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the 
revenue accounts of services for which the employees worked

- Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or 
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs

- Net interest on the net defined pension liability (asset) i.e. net interest expense for the 
Council – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that 
arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This is 
calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation 
at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning 
of the period taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) 
during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

 Remeasurement comprising:
- The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the defined 

benefit liability (asset) charged to the Pension Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure

-  Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumption – charged to the Pensions 
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

- Contributions paid to the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund – cash paid as 
employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted 
for as an expense.  

Pg 100



In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners 
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.   

In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and 
replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such 
amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the 
Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being 
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits 
are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in 
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any 
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for 
using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

VIII. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is 
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 
period - the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect these.

 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the 
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of 
events would have a material effect, disclosures is made in the notes of the nature of 
the event and an estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement 
of Accounts.

IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and 
carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was 
originally recognised. 

For all of the borrowing that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principle repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account is the amount payable for the 
year in the loan agreement.

All current borrowing is with the Public Works Loan Board and the Council has no intention at 
present to make early settlement of these loans.  Borrowing costs that relate to these loans 
are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account as they are incurred.

Pg 101



Financial assets are classified into two types:

 Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not 
quoted in an active market.

 Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have 
fixed or determinable payments.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a 
party to contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. 
They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by 
the effective rate of interest of the instrument.  For all of the loans that the Council has made, 
this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principle 
receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge 
made to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service)  or the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount 
and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original 
effective interest rate.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.

Available-for-sale Assets

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and 
carried at fair value.  Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are included.

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value, where it is deemed to be material.  

X. GOVERNMENT GRANTS & OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
assurance that:
 The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
 The grants or contributions will be received

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contributions have been 
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potentially embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must 
be returned to the transferor.

Pg 102



Money advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or 
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and 
contributions) or Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (non ring fenced revenue grants and 
all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where Capital Grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure

XI. HERITAGE ASSETS

Heritage assets are held or maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and 
culture.   They are initially recognised at cost if this is available.   If cost is not available, values 
are only included in the Balance Sheet where the cost of obtaining valuation is not 
disproportionate to the benefit derived.  For most of the Council’s heritage assets, insurance 
valuations are used.  Where no market exists or the asset is deemed to be unique, and it is not 
practicable to obtain a valuation, the asset is not recognised in the Balance Sheet but 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts.

Heritage assets are depreciated over their useful life if this can be established.  If an asset is 
considered to have an indefinite life, no depreciation is charged.  Disposals, revaluation gains 
and losses and impairments of heritage assets are dealt with in accordance with the Council’s 
policies relating to property, plant and equipment.  

The cost of maintenance and repair of heritage assets is written off in the year incurred.

XII. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable 
and controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council. 

Expenditure on the development of the Council’s website is not capitalised.  

Intangible Assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In 
practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore 
carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its 
useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset 
might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gains or losses arising on the 
disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure 
Line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an 
impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts 
Reserve.

Pg 103



The useful life of intangible assets is assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time of 
acquisition.  Intangible assets are derecognised when no future economic benefits are 
expected from them.

XIII. INTERESTS IN COMPANIES AND OTHER ENTITIES

The Council has a material interest in Gravitas Housing Limited.  The nature of this 
relationship has been assessed and it is deemed to be a subsidiary.  The Council is not 
currently required to produce group accounts on the grounds of materiality.

XIV. INVENTORIES AND LONG TERM CONTRACTS

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Long term contracts are  accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the 
provision of services with the value of works and services received under the contract during 
the financial year.  

XV. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of 
services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the 
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. As a non-financial asset investment properties are 
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually 
according to market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However 
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have 
an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of 
the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts 
Reserve.

XVI. LEASES

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the 
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in 
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of specific assets

The Council as Lessee

Finance Leases:

Pg 104



Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet 
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the leases inception (or the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a 
liability for the obligation to pay the lessor e.g. payments net of financing costs. Initial direct 
costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry 
into the lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as 
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:
 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to 

write down the lease liability, and
 A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the 
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease 
term if this is shorter than the assets estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does 
not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and 
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead a prudent annual contribution is made 
from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory 
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by 
a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with 
the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference 
between the two.

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased 
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight line basis over the life of the 
lease, even if this does not match the patterns of payments (e.g. there is a rent free period at 
the commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor

Finance Leases

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the 
lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and 
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A 
gain, representing the Council’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal) matched 
by a lease (long term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between

 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease 
debtor (together with any premiums received), and

 Finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Pg 105



The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not 
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a 
capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund 
Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the 
amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future 
financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital 
Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are 
received, the element for the capital receipts for the disposal of the asset is used to write down 
the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital 
Receipts Reserve.

The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are 
therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Operating Leases

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made 
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of 
payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs 
incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental 
income.

XVII. OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance 
with the Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.
 

XVIII. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods 
and services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be 
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property Plant and Equipment. 

Recognition: 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council, over more than one year 
and that the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does 
not add to an assets potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. 
repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.  

Enhancement is expenditure intended to:
 lengthen substantially the useful life of the asset,
 increase substantially the value of the asset,
 increase substantially the extent to which the asset can be used

.
The Council has a de-minimis of £10,000 for capital expenditure, with the exception of the 
purchase of motor vehicles.  Where the total cost of an asset is higher than £10,000 but only 
part of the expenditure has occurred within a financial year that expenditure would be included 
in the balance sheet even if it was below the de minimis level. 

Pg 106



Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

 the purchase price
 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 

be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred while assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash 
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost 
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
 Dwellings – current value determined using the basis of existing use value for social 

housing (EUV-SH).  The social housing discount applied in 2017/18 is 42%.
 Community assets and assets under construction –  historical cost. 
 Plant, Vehicles & Equipment – depreciated historical cost
 All other classes of assets – current value, unless there is no market-based evidence of 

fair value because of the specialist nature of the asset.  In this case fair value is estimated 
using the Depreciated Replacement Cost method.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued where there have been 
material changes in the value, but as a minimum every five years.  Valuations of property 
assets are carried out by the District Valuer, an external, qualified valuer, who is independent 
of the Council. The method of valuations is as recommended by CIPFA and in accordance 
with the principles and guidance notes issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.   
Operational assets constructed or acquired during the year will be re-valued on 1 April of the 
following year.  

Increases as a result of revaluations are debited to the appropriate asset account, with the 
opposite entry going to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains, except to the 
extent where it reverses a previous revaluation loss that was charged to a service revenue 
account within the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.  In this case the 
revaluation gain will first be used to offset the previous loss and any further gain is then taken 
to the Revaluation Reserve.  Revaluation gains charged to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 
Services are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.

Decreases as a result of revaluation, which are not specific to one asset but affect several, are 
revaluation losses as opposed to impairments.  The decrease is recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve up to the balance in respect of each asset affected and then in Surplus or Deficit on 
Provision of Services.   Any such charge taken to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services is 
then transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into 
the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be 

Pg 107



material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the 
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains)

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of 
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not 
been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

 Land is not depreciated as it will not have a finite life.

 Council Dwellings and Other Buildings are depreciated using the straight line method. The 
finite useful life is assessed by the District Valuer at the time of revaluation but for Council 
Dwellings is usually 50 years, and for other buildings is between 1 and 60 years.

 Plant and Equipment are also depreciated by the straight line method. Useful life is 
assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time of acquisition, usually between 3 and 10 
years.  Some assets have a longer life span, up to 30 years.  

 Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing balance method at a rate of 25% per annum.

 Non-current assets held-for sale are not depreciated.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historic cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Componentisation: 

Only assets with a carrying amount more than or equal to £500,000 at the beginning of the 
financial year are considered for componentisation.  To be recognised as a component the 
value of the part of the asset being considered must be more than or equal to 10% of the value 
of the asset, and have a life less than or equal to half that of the main asset.  When a 
component is replaced, the carrying amount of the old component is derecognised and the 
new component is recognised. If the carrying amount of the old component is not known, this 

Pg 108



is estimated by indexing back from the cost of the new component and adjusting for 
depreciation and impairment over the old component’s useful life.  The Building Costs Index 
will be used.

The depreciation calculated is charged to the service revenue accounts, central support 
service accounts and trading accounts. 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Depreciation charges for non-housing assets are not proper charges to the General Fund, so 
are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. Depreciation charges for HRA dwellings that are covered by the Major Repairs 
Allowance (MRA) are real charges and are included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure. If the depreciation charged is higher than the MRA an amount equal to the 
difference is transferred to the HRA from the Major Repairs Reserve (MRR). If the depreciation 
is lower than the MRA the transfer is from the HRA to the reserve. These transactions are 
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is classified as an Asset 
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the 
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to 
a fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted in the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up 
to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before 
they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations 
that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their 
recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off 
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited 
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion 
of receipts related to housing disposals is payable to the Government. The balance of receipts 
remains within the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital 
investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital 
financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Pg 109



The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are 
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.

XIX. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions: 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or 
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For 
instance the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making 
of a settlement or the payment of compensation.  

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are 
measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle 
the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance 
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it 
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a 
lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the 
relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered 
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the 
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is 
settled.

The council has made a provision for settling the self-insured element of Public Liability 
insurance claims.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential.

XX. RESERVES

Pg 110



The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a 
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the 
expenditure.  

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes e.g. for non-current assets, 
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council – 
these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.

XXI. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.   
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital 
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.

XXII. VAT 

. VAT is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

XXIII. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment 
properties at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability.

The council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act 
in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the council takes into account a 
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest 
and best use.

The council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 
the use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the council’s financial statements are categorised within the fair 
value hierarchy as follows:

Pg 111



 Level 1 – quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the council can access at the measurement date

 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

Pg 112



Governance and Audit Committee

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Governance and Audit Committee 

22 March 2018

Prevention of Right to Buy Fraud – Procedural 
Information (CFM456)

Decision
Proposal:

None

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Dee Harrison – Counter Fraud Officer
01746 406340 – dee.harrison@southkesteven.gcsx.gov.uk
1 March 2018

Richard Wyles – Assistant Director Finance
01476 406210 – r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
5 March 2018 

Debbie Mogg  – Interim Strategic Director Resources
01476 406301 – debbie.mogg@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 8 March 2018

Councillor Adam Stokes
Date: 8 March 2018 

SUMMARY

The Council has an obligation to protect its property assets from fraudulent misuse by 
having appropriate, robust risk and control frameworks in place that include clear plans 
to prevent, detect and respond to fraud by ensuring all sales of the Council’s housing 
stock are sold to those who legally qualify.  

RECOMMENDATION

The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the Prevention of Right to 
Buy Fraud – Procedural Information as shown at Appendix A.

Pg 113

Agenda Item 12

mailto:dee.harrison@southkesteven.gcsx.gov.uk
mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.mogg@southkesteven.gov.uk


1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 The Council is committed to the highest standards of quality, probity, openness 
and accountability.  As part of the Committee’s terms of reference, counter 
fraud is one of the key areas of focus being an essential element of delivering 
good governance. 

Like any organisation South Kesteven is inherently vulnerable to the risk of 
fraud and corruption.  With reducing Government funding and the current 
economic position it is vital that robust arrangements for the prevention and 
detection of fraud are maintained and best use of information and knowledge is 
made in order to ensure effective fraud prevention procedures in place. 

1.2 In April 2012 the Department for Communities and Local Government 
introduced new measures to reinvigorate the Right to Buy scheme. Tenants are 
now entitled to higher discounts when purchasing their socially rented 
properties resulting in an increase in the number of right to buy applications.  
This has driven a rise in fraudulent Right to Buy applications nationally. 
South Kesteven District Council has a responsibility to ensure that houses are 
not only sold to tenants who legally qualify, but to also ensure when the 
application is received, enhanced due diligence is conducted.  

1.3 In order to strengthen the Council’s position on this evolving risk this Prevention 
of Right to Buy Fraud – Procedural Information has been formalised to mitigate 
the risks of fraudulent applications being made by those not eligible to exercise 
this right, and to ensure anti-money laundering controls are in place.

1.4 The Council’s Counter Fraud Framework is due for review this year and the 
Prevention of Right to Buy Fraud – Procedural Information will become an 
integrated component of the revised framework.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

There are resource implications in terms of staffing and in order to undertake 
the tasks that are set out in the attached procedure. 

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

These are contained within the report where appropriate.

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY & DIVERSITY)

None.

Pg 114



6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

None. The purpose of the introduction of the procedure is to assist the 
detection and prevention of crime.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

These are contained within the report where appropriate.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

The Council has in place a Counter Fraud Strategy, Fraud Response Plan and 
Whistleblowing Policy to counter fraud in all aspects of the work of the Council. 
Every local authority has a responsibility to be transparent and accountable to 
its residents.

The procedures set out in the Appendix to this report relate to the right to buy 
process which is the right set out in the Housing Act 1985 for all eligible 
statutory tenants of the Council to buy the freehold or leasehold of the dwelling 
which they rent. If as a result of a proven fraud, a tenant becomes ineligible, the 
right to buy will be stopped. If a conviction for fraud is secured, an action for 
possession of the council tenancy may be possible depending on the type of 
conviction. 

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

None.

10. APPENDICES

Appendix A:  Prevention of Right to Buy Fraud – Procedural Information

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

 Counter Fraud Strategy - 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=14612&p=0

Pg 115

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=14612&p=0


Appendix A

Prevention of Right to Buy Fraud 
Procedural Information

1. Introduction and background
National Context

The Council has an obligation to protect its property assets from fraudulent misuse by having appropriate, robust 
risk and control frameworks in place that include clear plans to prevent, detect and respond to fraud by ensuring all 
sales of the Council’s housing stock are sold to those who legally qualify. 

Right to Buy (RTB) is the scheme that allows tenants who have lived in their properties for a qualifying period the 
right to purchase the property at a discount.  As housing has become increasingly expensive the value of this type of 
fraud has seen a rapid increase.  The loss is higher in London than in other parts of the country, with an average 
value per case of £97,000 against £81,000 for the rest of the UK.

The CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker Survey Report 2017 reported the estimated total value of housing fraud was 
£263.4m with the value of Right to Buy (RTB) fraud being £112m. 

The vast majority of RTB applications are genuine.  However, given the value of social housing, both in monetary 
terms, and in terms of the provision of homes to those in need, RTB fraud is recognised as an emerging risk to the 
Council.  RTB fraud could become an even greater risk than tenancy fraud for the following reasons:

 It is lucrative – the average value of a RTB fraud is £64k per property
 It lends itself to money laundering
 Less stringent checks/controls = more fraudster opportunity
 It encourages sub-letting/non-residency in order to take advantage of the scheme

Further information on RTB can be found at the following link:

Your Right to Buy Your Home:  A guide for tenants of councils, new towns and registered social landlords including 
housing associations

2. Definition and types of Right to Buy fraud
RTB fraud occurs when an existing tenant misrepresents their circumstances to either gain a discount they are not 
entitled to or exercises the Right to Buy when they are not entitled to.  The most common examples of RTB fraud 
are: 

 Misrepresenting the length of a tenancy in order to gain a greater discount
 Concealing a tenancy history eg not disclosing previous rent arrears, possession orders, transfers or evictions 
 Attempting to purchase a property whilst not using it as their only or principal home 
 Misrepresenting the household composition eg submitting a joint RTB application with someone who does not 

reside at the property or who has not done so for the required period
 Have entered into an agreement with a third party to buy the property on your behalf for a cash incentive
 Unscrupulous family members make an application ‘on behalf’ of a vulnerable relative

Pg 116

https://righttobuy.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/01/Your-Right-to-Buy-Your-Home-A-Guide-April-2017.pdf
https://righttobuy.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/01/Your-Right-to-Buy-Your-Home-A-Guide-April-2017.pdf


Appendix A

3. The impact of Right to Buy fraud
The demand for social housing is outstripping supply therefore RTB fraud:

 Deprives genuine social housing tenants of an affordable home
 Reduces valuable housing stock 
 Increases the risk of money-laundering

4. Prevention of Right to Buy fraud
As with all other fraud risks preventative action is the most effective, therefore our primary focus will be at the 
application stage by undertaking the following actions:

Identification verification of tenant/s and third parties
Acceptable forms of ID are:

 A current signed passport
 A current UK driving licence photocard
 A current full UK driving licence (old paper version pre 1998 – but not old version of provisional driving licence)
 Copy of marriage certificate (must be provided if current tenancy is in different name/s)

Residency verification of tenant/s and third parties
Acceptable forms of proof of residency are:

 A utility bill issued within the last three months (but not a mobile phone bill)
 A local authority tax bill valid for the current year
 Bank, building society or credit union statement showing current address
 Current UK driving licence (old full licence or new photo card licence) if not used for evidence of identity

Residency, tenancy history and household circumstances
 A credit reference check will be made via an external agency to verify an applicant’s credit history in relation to 

Debt Relief Orders (DRO’s) and Individual Voluntary Agreements (IVA’s) and household circumstances
 Additional checks in relation to residency and tenancy history through an external agency in order to identify 

previous addresses and confirm that the property is the applicant’s principle home
 A tenancy check may be undertaken in order to assess whether or not the authorised tenant is residing at the 

property and assess the household circumstances and to verify identity. This is also an opportunity to discuss the 
implications of home ownership and ensure the tenant hasn’t been targeted by unscrupulous ‘advisors’

 Where the applicant is receiving housing benefit (Universal Credit) or has been receiving these benefits within 
the last six months, an explanation is required in relation to the change in circumstances which allows the 
applicant to purchase the property

Source of funds
The Council is committed to the prevention of money laundering and it is essential that any monies paid to the 
authority are confirmed as being from a legitimate source therefore the following will be requested: 

 A completed anti-money laundering declaration form
 Explanation of where funds have derived from 

and one or more of the following where applicable:

 Bank statements
 Copy of mortgage offer (agreement in principle) 

Pg 117



Appendix A
 In relation to third party (family and friends) payments – name and address of third party, bank statements 

showing the existence of funds and a letter from the third party

5. Working in partnership with other organisations
We will work with other organisations such as those indicated below to protect public funds and prevent, detect, 
investigate and prosecute cases of RTB fraud:  

 The Police
 DWP 
 HM Revenue and Customs
 Other Councils
 Other Council departments

The Council is committed to the exchange of information with other organisations, either on a case basis or through 
the mechanism of data-matching, and will observe the law on Data Protection and the rules of confidentiality at all 
times.

At all times, the Council will observe the advice and guidance of the Data Protection Registrar in the area of Data 
Matching.

6. Duties and considerations of counter fraud officers
When investigating fraud council fraud investigators, inspectors and visiting officers will work within the guidelines 
of the Police and Criminal Evidence Act and apply the Council’s policies on equal opportunities and customer care.  
The Council’s officers will at all times apply appropriate procedures to maintain confidentiality.

It is the duty of the fraud investigators, inspectors and visiting officers to investigate all referrals of suspected or 
alleged Right to Buy fraud and to establish the facts of each case.

7. Summary
 We are committed to ensuring we meet our obligations in relation to tenants exercising their RTB
 We will undertake to implement effective detection, investigation and deterrence procedures against RTB fraud
 We will seek to recover any discounts in relation to property claimed fraudulently under RTB  
 We may also wish to consider prosecution against those who submit fraudulent RTB requests. Most of these 

offences fall under the Fraud Act 2006.  Criminal action can be taken retrospectively even if the RTB has already 
gone through and the discount awarded can still be recovered accordingly

Pg 118


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2017
	6 HRA Capital Programme Update
	APPA HRA Capital Monitoring Statement P11 2017-18

	7 Annual Report on Grants and Returns 2016/17
	Annual Report on grants and returns 2016/17
	Contents
	Headlines
	Summary of reporting outcomes
	Summary of certification work outcomes
	Slide Number 6

	8 Indicative Internal Audit Strategy
	9 External Audit Plan 2017/18
	External�Audit Plan 2017/2018
	Summary for Governance and  Audit Committee
	Summary for Governance and Audit Committee (cont.)
	Introduction
	Financial statements audit planning
	Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
	Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
	Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
	Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
	Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
	Value for money arrangements work
	Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
	Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
	Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
	Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
	Other matters
	Other matters
	Key elements of our financial statements audit approach
	Key elements of our financial statements audit approach (cont.)
	Audit team
	Independence and objectivity requirements
	Independence and objectivity requirements (cont.)
	Independence and objectivity requirements (cont.)
	Slide Number 24

	10 Internal Audit Reports
	Appendix 8b Internal Audit Follow Up 3 SKDC (2)

	11 Statement of Accounting Policies 2017/18
	12 Prevention of Right to Buy Fraud - Procedural Information
	CFM456 Appendix A Prevention of Right to Buy Fraud - Procedural Information




